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KASAGANA-KA Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.
Annual Report 2016

Message from the General Manager

In May 31, 2016, KASAGANA-KA Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. (KMBA) celebrated its 101
year anniversary with a theme, “Pakikiisa at Paglilingkod” with our operations. We have
remained consistent with our vision, mission and goals as a Mi-MBA. Indeed, we remained
true to our commitment to serve the poor with a heart and work closely with our members
and for our members. We have also been in toes with the changing times so that we remain
strong in this ever changing microinsurance industry.

Coming from the 10™ year celebration, we started 2016 full of new ideas and energy to make
them happen. Together with our Board of Trustees and the management team, new
governance policies and systems were set in place to meet the local and international
standards. KMBA is committed to strengthen our operations and making it more
professional. Our Board and Management team are consistently being updated about the
microinsurance industry through trainings and participation in dialogues and conferences.
We work closely with the Mi-MBA Association of the Philippines, Inc., the Insurance
Commission and other associations and organizations both private and non-profit on
different industry matters.

| am also proud to say that the association’s website is fully functional and frequently
updated to inform every one of our operations and achievements. We have set in place
policies that will ensure we practice good corporate governance. We have much to learn
and eager to learn more all for the betterment of our association and in the service of our
members.

It is with gratitude that we share our accomplishments for 2016 to our members, partners
and colleagues.

Silvida Reyes-Antiquera
General Manager, KMBA
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KASAGANA-KA Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.
Annual Report 2016

Part I: Financial and Non-Financial Performance

KMBA Profile

KMBA is a non-stock, not-for-profit organization owned and managed by its members.
The association was organized in May 2006. It is a sister organization of the KASAGANA-KA
Development Center, Inc. (KDCI), a social development nongovernment organization using
microfinance as its major strategy for empowerment and financial education. KDCl’s client-
beneficiaries and staff members constitute KMBA’s primary members. KMBA also offers
associate membership to client-beneficiaries of its partner microfinance organizations and
other organized sectors. KMBA’s primary members and clients are from the urban poor
sector, majority of which are women.

Vision

KMBA envisions a self-reliant and self-sustaining mutual benefit association that
actively and appropriately responds to financial risk management needs of poor Filipino
families.

Mission
To provide micro-insurance products and services for the poorest Filipino families.

Goals
1. To promote basic life insurance that can broaden the safety net of the Filipino
poor;
2. To engage in socially oriented activities that render assistance to members in
terms of their security needs; and
3. To develop a cost effective mechanisms for the delivery of microinsurance
products.
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Good Corporate Governance

The Board of Trustees and Management Team of KMBA is committed to the principles and
best practices contained in the KMBA’s Manual on Corporate Good Governance, association
by-laws, and Articles of Incorporation. The Board and Management will remain transparent
and accountable to its members and shall govern and manage with integrity. It shall ensure
checks and balances set in place and that its operations is participative and rights-based.

The association is committed to adhering to these principles and practices, and acknowledge
that these will serve as guide in the attainment of the association’s vision, mission and goals.

The Board of Trustees together with the General Manager shall closely monitor
implementation on the Code of Corporate Governance.

Board Policy Review

As part of its commitment to the implementation of good corporate governance, the Board
reviewed the association’s vision, mission and goals annually. The Board did not see the need
to revise the VMG since they are still to be achieved and likewise relevant to the changing
industry environment. The programs and services are still aligned with the VMG. With the
financial support received from Citi Foundation through RIMANSI, KMBA’s basic life
insurance product is currently being reviewed and hopefully, will be enhanced to meet the
needs of the members. Other policies shall be reviewed and evaluated by the Board in 2017
to assess its implementation and respond to policy gaps. The Board is very much committed
to the improvement of the governance and management of the association.

KMBA Product and Services

Basic Life Insurance Plan (BLIP): This is provided to all client-beneficiaries and staff
members of KDCl together with client-beneficiaries of KMBA partner microfinance
institutions and other organized community or basic sector groups. Members contribute
Php20 weekly: Phpl5 for insurance premium and Php5 for the retirement savings fund.
KMBA processes benefit claims using a 1-3-5 day target

Credit Life Insurance Plan (CLIP): This is offered to KMBA partner organization an
insurance coverage in which the latter could insure its individual borrowers or debtors for
an amount equal to the loan granted, in each particular case up to a maximum of Php
200,000.00.

K-Kalinga: is a personal accident insurance with fire assistance designed specifically for
non-KMBA members. It is made available to KMBA primary and associate members as well
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as to their relatives and fellow community members who may be in need of insurance
coverage. This is in partnership with the Bankers Assurance Corporation.

BAHAYnihan: Through SICAT — a non-stock, not for profit organization of mutual benefit
associations within the network of the RIMANSI Organization for Asia and the Pacific, Inc. —
KMBA members can gain access to the post-emergency residential housing assistance (or
the BAHAYnihan) program. A maximum of Php2,000 may be given to members of KMBA with
totally damaged house following a natural or man made disaster, including typhoon,
flooding, earthquake, volcanic eruption, tsunami, fire, lightning, and acts of terrorism.

Kuya Jun Scholarship Program is a scholarship program for children of members which
began after KMBA’s establishment. The name came from the first executive director of KDCI,
Severino C. Msrcelo, Jr, who passed away in 2008. The program is open to highschool and
college students. Applicants will have to pass the qualifying exam after which a background
check shall be done. To keep their scholarship, high school students should obtain a grade
average of 82 while college students, a grade of 2.5 or its equivalent, with no failing marks
and two (2) grades of incomplete.

Accomplishments

Financial Performance

KMBA financially performed well for 2016. The total premium collection for BLIP was at
Php32 million while for the CLIP was at Php 6.3 million. Both of which were higher than last
year’s collection. Table 1 shows the total premium collection since KMBA started in 2007.
We have remained consistent every year in the increase in premium collection of more or
less 10%. This is still due to the increase in membership every year.

Table 1. Total Premium Collection for 2016

Year BLIP CLIP

2007 3,713,530

2008 8,448,850

2009 9,928,616

2010 12,656,688

2011 15,530,185

2012 20,102,172 303,157

2013 21,962,208 3,168,122

2014 25,771,607 4,906,057

2015 29,420,648 5,574,428

2016 32,004,443 6,297,905
Total 179,538,947 20,249,669

KMBA'’s total assets for 2016 increased to Php165 million. Liabilities was at Php106.4 million
(including equity value and retirement savings fund or RSF). Fund balance, composed of the
guaranty fund and unassigned surplus, amounted to more than Php58.6 million from last
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year’s PHP42.5 million. While the operating expenses reached 19.5 percent of the gross
premium collection. This is in compliance with the Insurance Commission’s 20-percent limit
on administrative costs.

Table 2. Total Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balance for 2016

Assets Php 165, 089, 746.00
Liabilities

50% Reserves & Retirement Php 106, 406, 130.00
Savings Fund

Claims

Since 2007 up to 2016, KMBA have had a total of 2,288 claims amounting to Php
30,175,815.41. For 2016 alone, there were 432 total claims amounting to Php 6,951,019.00.
59% of the total claims came from dependent while 41% were from members (refer to
Figure 1). Claims were classified as follows: a) Natural Death (90.3%), b) MVAH (8.6%), c)
Accidental Death (.7%), and d) TPD (.5%).

KMBA Claims Distribution

® Member

m Dependent

Figure 1. Claims Distribution for 2016
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KMBA Membership

The Kasagana-ka Development Center, Inc. (KDCI) used to handle the MFI operations, of
which, all client-beneficiaries are also KMBA members. In 2016, the MFI operation evolved
into a cooperative which gave birth to the Kabuhayan sa Ganap ng Kasarinlan Credit and
Savings Cooperative (K-Coop).

KDCI remains as an NGO providing services to members of the K-Coop and KMBA such as on
health, housing, capacity building, among others. Majority of KMBA’s members come from
K-Coop. They are currently operating in some parts of Metro Manila, Bulacan, Rizal and other
neighboring provinces such as in Cavite and Laguna. There are also affiliate/consortium
members from partners servicing in Metro Cebu and Baguio.

For 2016 the total number of membership under the K-Coop was 32,384 and 11,988 for the
Consortium (refer to Table 3). Majority of the members are coming from Bulacan and Rizal
area. And of the total membership, 98% are women. We do not just empower the urban
poor, we empower women.

Table 3. Total Number of Membership

Year K-COOP Consortium
2007 12,237

2008 21,358

2009 17,037

2010 17,802

2011 19,736 4,416
2012 24,509 11,210
2013 24,126 10,021
2014 27,879 9,673
2015 32,002 10,571
2016 32,384 11,988

There was a total of 263 members who were terminated due to retirement age in the
product policy. They received 50% of their equity value and the retirement savings fund
including the interest of 2% per annum. From the terminated members, 216 opted to invest
their money in the K-Koop through the GK Fund while the remaining 47 members received
their benefits in cash. The total amount of benefit released was Php 1,320,606.72.
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Products and Services

KMBA offers two (2) in-house insurance products, namely: Basic Life Insurance Plan (BLIP)
and Credit Life Insurance Plan (CLIP). The K-Kalinga, a personal accident insurance with fire
assistance is being offered by KMBA to its members in partnership with the Bankers
Assurance Corporation. To further empower the members and provide additional services,
KMBA provides BAHAYnihan assistance in partnership with SICAT during the time of calamity
and the Kuya Jun Scholarship Program. KMBA also participates in the network’s risk
management pooling such as the reinsurance of the basic life insurance members and
dependents to Philippine National Reinsurance with no extra cost on the part of the
members. This initiative is part of the continuing effort of KMBA to provide service to the
policy holders and ensure strong support to the stability of the association.

a) Basic Life Insurance Plan (BLIP)
Under the BLIP, KMBA has a premium collection of Php 32,004,443 for 2016. This was higher
by 8.78% from 2015 where the collection was at Php 29,420,648.

b) Credit Life Insurance Plan (CLIP)

The CLIP provides KMBA partner organizations an insurance coverage where they can insure
individual borrowers or debtors for an amount equal to the loan granted to them. The
maximum amount that can be insured is Php 200,000.

There were a total of 94,356 loans made in 2016 covered by the CLIP. The total premium
collected was Php 6,297,905.00. There were 138 claims filed amounting to Php
1,390,000.00. Figure below will provide the summary performance of CLIP for 2016.

Number of loans

covered by CLIP *94,356

Premium Collected *Php 6,297,905.00

Number of Claims *138

Amount of Claims *PhP 1,390,000.00

Figure 2. Summary of 2016 CLIP Performance

*22%
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c) K-Kalinga

The K-Kalinga product is a personal accident insurance which include fire assistance. In 2016,
the number of Proof of Cover (POC) sales was at 16,947. The total number of claims was 26
that included 24 fire incidents and 2 accidental death. From the total number of claims, the
amount distributed was at Php 195,000.00.

d) BAHAYnihan

The BAHAYnihan is a program under SICAT that primarily aims to provide access to post-
emergency residential housing assistance. In 2016, there were 99 allocation for claims and
only 42 claims were made amounting to Php84,000. Table 4 provides the list of financial
assistance provided under the BAHAYnihan program.

Table 4. SICAT Housing Assistance for 2016

| Month Area Number Amount
January Meycauayan & Taytay 4 8,000
February Bagong Silang 1 2,000
March Taytay 1 2,000
April Montalban, Tungko, Pasig, Cebu 4 8,000
May San Pedro 8 16,000
June Fairview 2 4,000
July Tandang Sora, San Pedro (2) 3 6,000
August Masinag, B. Silang, Bocaue (2) 4 8,000
September Associate (2), Las Pinas (2) 4 8,000
October Las Pinas (3) 3 6,000
November Taytay 1 2,000
December Batasan (5), Guiguinto, Dasma 7 14,000
TOTAL 42 84,000

e) Kuya Jun Scholarship Program

The scholarship program, which started in 2007, was developed to provide qualified children
of KMBA’s members with financial assistance. This is open to high school and college
students.

There were a total of 100 scholars in 2016: 40 are in the college level and 60 in the secondary
or high school level. A total of 121 have graduated since the start of the program.
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Table 5. Kuya Jun Scholarship Program
Removed from

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

Total

Networks

H.S. College Total H.S. College Total H.S. College Total H.S. College Total

15 |

14

12

63

Graduate

12

13

~N o

58

6
0
10

27 |

20
21

12 |

19
6

121 14 29

2
3
6

program*

i wN DL SsE W

Existing

6

6 12

1 19 9

3 | 4| 22

7.1l 8 | 27

5 6 14

4 33| 14

6 30 19

11 46 18

43 146 141

6

12

28
26
35
20
47
49
64

27

21
6
35
12
25
14

New

Grand Amount
Total Given

12 12 12 48,000
12 12 18 89,000

27 39 149,000
28 28 56 365,000
1S | 36 62 350,000
4 10 45 260,000
9 44 64 325,000
15 27 74 438,281
10 35 84 262,000
22 36 100

287 140 127 267

KMBA has been an active member of the Mi-MBA Association of the Philippines (MiMAP),
serving in the 2016 Board of Trustees as Secretary. In October 2016, KMBA was officially
accepted as a new members of the International Cooperative and Mutual Insurance

Federation (ICMIF).

KMBA Additional Accomplishments for 2016

2016 was a fruitful year for KMBA. It also was a very busy one with several events and
activities participated in. It also mentioned actions done by the Management to comply with

regulations on time.

Accomplishments

Dates

Microinsurance Forum

Microinsurance Month Celebration

Recollection and Team Building of BoT Members and Area
Coordinators

Asean Corporate Governance Scorecard

Annual Statement Workshop

Product Orientation: Privatization and Management Office

Employees and Taguig Women’s Group

January 25, 2016
January 29, 2016
February 2-4, 2016

March 28, 2016

March 28, 2016

March 4, 2016, March 8
and March 29, 2016
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Accomplishments Dates

Government Compliance April 15/April 29, 2016

* BIR & SEC filing of ITR and audited FS April 29, 2016

* Annual Statement/Seriatim; June 15, 2016

* ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard
10" Annual General Meeting May 31, 2016
10% Year Anniversary May 31, 2016
Corporate Governance Workshop April 5, 2016
Revised Performance Standard Workshop May 3, 2016
Release of 3-year license May 4, 2016
JVOFI Product Orientation June 9, 2016
MiMAP dialogue with IC July 25, 2016
JVOFI Operations Training August 4-5, 2016
Training on Parliamentary August 12-13, 2016
KMBA KOINS Orientation August 17, 2016
Enterprise Risk Mgt Session Sept. 21, 2016
MiMAP & SICAT Meetings Sept. 1 & 27, 2016
BOT & Coordinators Training Sept. 29-30, 2016
Governance and AMLA Workshop October 20-21, 2016
ICMIF-AQOA Development Network Seminar - Tokyo, Japan October 24- 28
Management Forum - Legaspi, Albay November 22-25
Life Skills for Effective MiMBA Workshop December 7-9

KMBA Plans for 2017

The Board of Trustees and the Management of KMBA sees 2017 as more fruitful for the
organization. A lot has been learned from the past challenges leading to the implementation
of new policies and systems that will resolve these concerns. The practice of good corporate
governance for one is something which the Management is proud of because it was not easy
at first to change what has already been practiced. However, upon putting into practice what
has learned, things became clearer while the operations become more efficient and
effective.

To fully realize good corporate governance, we have planned to strengthen the use of
Internet-based MIS leading also to lessen the use of paper and other materials. KMBA will
also focused on increasing its membership and improving products and services particularly
basic life insurance plan. KMBA envisioned to have its own building that will serve as an
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investment and will also hold its own office by 2017. The skills development of both the
Board members and the staff is also a priority.

The governing team envisions also a more active KMBA, working beyond its products and
services by strengthening its networks and partnerships with other associations and
organizations. For the past years now, it has been an active member of MiMAP (Rimansi).
One such project of RIMANSI is the investment pooling where KMBA will be participating.

Part I1. Corporate Governance and Management

KMBA is governed and managed by its Board of Trustees together with the Management
Team led by the General Manager. At present, the management team has seven (7) full time
staff which attends to the day-to-day operations of KMBA.

KMBA's Corporate Governance Manual, along with a Code of Conduct and Ethics, enshrines
accountability and transparency within the organization and its management. Operations
are also guided by the vision mission and goals of the association.

Board of Trustees

The Board of Trustees is formally assigned responsibility in KMBA’s by-laws for the
“government, control, and general management of the affairs, funds and property of the
association.” Compliance with the principles of sound corporate governance instituted in
the Manual of Corporate Good Governance is the paramount responsibility of, and starts
with, the board of trustees. The board exercises corporate powers and conduct and manage
the programs and services of KMBA in consonance with the principles of sound corporate
governance instituted in the manual and is responsible for fostering the long-term success
of the association.

A trustee’s office is one of trust and confidence. As such, a trustee shall act in a manner
characterized by transparency, accountability, and fairness.

2016 Board of Trustees and Key Officer
Isabel M. lliw-iliw
President (2016-2019)
Academic/Professional Qualifications:
Bachelor of Science in Agriculture — Bohol Agricultural College, 1989
Age: 50
Date of First Appointment
May 31, 2016
Other Present Corporate Directorship
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Isabel M. lliw-iliw
President (2016-2019)

None
Seminars Attended:
e Training on Parliamentary Procedure
Alitagtag Nature Retreat House, Alitagtag, Batanggas
September 30, 2016
e Governance & AMLA Workshop
New Horizon Hotel, Mandaluyong City
October 20-21, 2016
e Management Forum: Managing Mi-MBA Enterprise Risk
Hotel St. Ellis, Legaspi City, Albay
November 22-25, 2016
e Microinsurance Forum
Diamond Hotel, Manila
January 24, 2017

Marissa G. Loyola
Treasurer (2016-2019)

Academic/Professional Qualifications:

Bachelor in Hotel & Restaurant Management - Polytechnic University of the Philippines,
1988
Age: 50
Date of First Appointment
May 31, 2016
Other Present Corporate Directorship
None
Seminars Attended:
e Training on Parliamentary Procedure
Alitagtag Nature Retreat House, Alitagtag, Batanggas
September 30, 2016
e Governance & AMLA Workshop
New Horizon Hotel, Mandaluyong City
October 20-21, 2016
e Microinsurance Forum
Diamond Hotel, Manila
January 24, 2017

Jerlene B. Perez
Secretary (2016-2019)

Academic/Professional Qualifications:

Computer System Design and Programming; AMA-CLC, 1998
Age: 38

Date of First Appointment
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June 27, 2014
Other Present Corporate Directorship
President, Kasagana-Ka Employer-Employee Provident Fund, Inc.
Seminars Attended:
e Training on Parliamentary Procedure
Alitagtag Nature Retreat House, Alitagtag, Batanggas
September 30, 2016
e Governance & AMLA Workshop
New Horizon Hotel, Mandaluyong City
October 22-23, 2015

Ma. Teresa G. Bucad
Member (2016-2019)

Academic/Professional Qualifications:
High School Graduate- Lolomboy National High School, 1980
Age: 53
Date of First Appointment
May 31, 2016
Other Present Corporate Directorship
None
Seminars Attended:
e Training on Parliamentary Procedure
Alitagtag Nature Retreat House, Alitagtag, Batanggas
September 30, 2016
e Microinsurance Forum
Diamond Hotel, Manila
January 24, 2017
e Governance & AMLA Workshop
Hotel Benilde, Malate Manila
May 24-26, 2017

Anita L. Manundo
Member (2016-2019)

Academic/Professional Qualifications:
Bachelor of Science in Accountancy - NCBA Fairview Quezon City, 1996
Age: 42
Date of First Appointment
May 31, 2016
Other Present Corporate Directorship
None
Seminars Attended:

e Leadership Training

Femar Garden Hotel & Convention Center, Antipolo City
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Anita L. Manundo
Member (2016-2019)

July 21, 2016
e Training on Parliamentary Procedure
Alitagtag Nature Retreat House, Alitagtag, Batanggas
September 30, 2016
e Microinsurance Forum
Diamond Hotel, Manila
January 24, 2017

Elizabeth G. Fuentes
Member (2016-2019)

Academic/Professional Qualifications:

High School Graduate - Makati High School, 1976
Age: 59

Date of First Appointment

May 31, 2016

Other Present Corporate Directorship

None

Seminars Attended:

e Training on Parliamentary Procedure
Alitagtag Nature Retreat House, Alitagtag, Batanggas
September 30, 2016

e Governance & AMLA Workshop
Hotel Benilde, Malate Manila
May 24-26, 2017

Marivic R. Loterte
Member (2013-2016)

Academic/Professional Qualifications:
High School Graduate — Bagong Silang High School, 1987
Age: 46
Date of First Appointment
June 27, 2014
Other Present Corporate Directorship
None
Seminars Attended:
e Governance & AMLA Workshop
New Horizon Hotel, Mandaluyong City
October 22-23, 2015
e Training on Parliamentary Procedure
Alitagtag Nature Retreat House, Alitagtag, Batanggas
September 30, 2016
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Ailene V. Ramos
Member (2013-2016)

Academic/Professional Qualifications:
High School Graduate — Marikina High School, 1994
Age: 40
Date of First Appointment
June 27, 2014
Other Present Corporate Directorship
None
Seminars Attended:
e |eadership Training Workshop
RIMANSI, 2015
=  Training on Parliamentary Procedure
Alitagtag Nature Retreat House, Alitagtag, Batanggas
September 30, 2016

Perla F. Batingal
Member (2013-2016)

Academic/Professional Qualifications:

A.B. Behavioral Science — UST, 1985

Post Grad: Masters Technology Management —U.P, 2004
Diploma Course: Retail Franchise Management — St. Benilde, La Salle, 2004
Age: 52

Date of First Appointment

June 27, 2013

Other Present Corporate Directorship

Chams Retail — Gen. Manager, 2010 to present

Goodyear Philippines — Branded Retail Manager, 2009 to present
TOTAL Philippines — Business development head, 2005 to present
Retail Branded Mktg. Director —JM Far East Inc. 2015 to present
DKT Philippines — Business Development/Start-up consultant

Seminars Attended:
= Governance and AMLA Workshop
Insurance Commission, 2014

Silvida Reyes-Antiquera
General Manager

Academic/Professional Qualifications:
Post Grad: Diploma program in Corporate Finance: Finance 101
Ateneo de Manila University Continuing Program, 2014
Certificate course on Universalizing Socio-economic Security for the Poor
International Institute of Social Studies
The Hague, The Netherlands, 2010
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MA Candidate, Community Development
University of the Philippines
Diliman, Quezon City, 1993
College Degree Bachelor of Science in Social Work
Asian Social Institute
Manila, 1985
Other Present Corporate Directorship
Board Secretary, Mi-MBA Association of the Philippines, 2014 to present
Board Secretary, Social Initiative Against Catastrophe, 2014 to present
Age: 56
Seminars Attended
= ACGS 2016: Performance of Mi-MBAs
New Horizon Hotel, Mandaluyong City
April 2, 2016
=  AQOA Training 2016
Toshi Center Hotel, Tokyo Japan
October 25-27, 2016
=  Management Forum: Managing Mi-MBA Enterprise Risks
Hotel St. Ellis, Legazpi City,Albay
November 22-25, 2016

Composition of the Board of Trustees

KMBA has a nine-person Board of Trustees composed of seven (7) member-representatives
from its various areas of coverage, a representative from the employees provident
association (KEEPF), and an independent member. KMBA’s general manager sits as ex-officio
member. With the exception of the independent member, the members of the board elect
from among themselves KMBA's president, treasurer, and secretary.

The member-representatives to the board are elected annually from the area coordinators.
Of the nine trustees elected, the first 7 trustees elected with the highest number of votes
will serve for a period of three years and the last two will serve for two years. Elections
thereafter will only be for the position of trustees vacated.

Board of Advisers
KMBA also has a Board of Advisers composed of four (4) former presidents of its board of
trustees and K-Coop’s General Manager.

2016 Board of Advisers
= Maria Anna de Rosas Ignacio
= |Leticica Traquefia Rodriguez
=  Wenifreda Fernandez Rodriguez
= Martiniana Gultiano Mancio
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= Chona Bugarin Capayas
= Elizabeth Nepomuceno Yayon

Independent Trustee

The Independent Trustee is a person who has no connection, relationship, or position with
KMBA or its partner organizations which could, or could reasonably be perceived to,
materially interfere with the exercise of his or her independent judgement in carrying out
his or her responsibilities as an independent trustee. He or she likewise should not be acting
as nominee or representative of any individual in the related institutions or any of its
members. For 2013 up to present, the Independent Trustee is Ms. Perla F. Batingal.

Board Performance

The regular meeting of the board of trustees shall be held at least once a month. However,
the president or a majority of the trustees may at any time call a special board meeting to
consider urgent matters.

KMBA shall hold its annual general membership meeting every 31st of May.

Attended No. of BoT No. of

Board of Trustees Designation Blz::tlll;lg mehe:ll:;gs :::i::(;leg; %
Isabel M. Iliw-iliw President v 7 7 100%
Marissa A. Loyola Treasurer v 7 7 100%
Jerlene B. Perez Secretary v 7 5 71%
Ma. Teresa G. Bucad Member v 7 7 100%
Anita L. Manundo Member v 7 7 100%
Elizabeth G. Fuentes  Member v 7 6 86%
Marivic R. Loterte Member v 7 7 100%
Ailene V. Ramos Member v 7 7 100%
Perla F. Batingal Independent X 7 5 71%

Board
Board Remuneration

The work at KMBA has always been about the passion to serve and help the urban poor
especially the women. Thus, the Board of Trustees, Board of Advisers, and committee
members do not receive any compensation or remuneration for their services, except for
actual reimbursements of monitoring and transportation expenses incurred.

For 2016, KMBA held 7 Board meetings. Transportation allowance were given to cover for
gasoline and other expenses incurred for attending the meeting.
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Total Amount of

No. of meetings No. of meetings .
Transportation

Name

held attended Allowance Received
Elizabeth N. Yayon 7 3 4,500
Judea T. Gutierrez 7 3 4 500
Ailene V. Ramos 7 7 10,500
Ma. Jona K. Parolan 7 3 4 500
Marivic R. Loterte 7 7 10,500
Perla F. Batingal 7 5 7,500
Isabel M. Iliw-iliw 7 4 6,000
Marissa A. Loyola 7 4 6,000
Elizabeth G. Fuentes 7 4 6,000
Anita L. Manundo 7 4 6,000
Ma. Teresa G. Bucad 7 4 6,000

Board Committees

KMBA has five (5) committees, composed of area coordinators and/or board members of K-
Coop. All committee chairs are board members, however no board member shall hold more
than one chair position. Within ten (10) days from their creation, the committees elect from
among its members, a chair and members. All committee members serve a term of one year.

There is also a Special Projects Committee which is composed of three (3) members from the
Board of board of advisers. This was chaired by the General Manager. The committee
members are composed of past presidents/advisers of KMBA. The committee’s task is to
handle and organize special events such as the AGM & 10" KMBA anniversary. A meeting
was held to discuss the program of the said activities.

Chairperson: Silvida R. Antiquera

Members : Chona B. Capayas
Martiniana G. Mancio
Elizabeth N. Yayon

Last year of 2016, The Special Projects Committee held 1 meeting with the following agenda:
(a) Preparation for 10™ year Annual General Meeting and Anniversary

No. of
No. of .
Name s e meetings %
attended
Silvida R. Antiquera 2 2 100%
Chona B. Capayas 2 2 100%
Martiniana G. Mancio 2 2 100%
Elizabeth N. Yayon 2 2 100%
18
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is composed of five (5) members: three trustees, including the
independent trustee, and two area coordinators. No member of this committee can hold
any other position within KMBA during his or her term of office. The committee provides
internal audit service, maintains a complete record of its examination and inventory, and
submit a financial report quarterly, or as may be required by the board and the general

assembly.

Chairperson : Perla F. Batingal (Independent Board)
Members :Judith S. Tandog (Batasa
Lilibeth A. Lagnason (Masinag)
Josefina Y. Torres (San Mateo)
Ma. Jona K. Parolan (Tungko)

For 2016, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings with the following agenda:

(a) Schedule of field audit of the external auditor
(b) Initial findings of the external auditor
(c) Presentation of the audited financial report to the Board

No. of meetings No. of meetings
Name held attended %
Perla F. Batingal 3 2 100%
Judith S. Tandog 3 2 100%
Lilibeth A. Lagnason 3 2 100%
Josefina Y. Torres 3 2 100%
Ma. Jona K. Parolan 3 2 100%

The 2016 Audit Committee worked closely with the management team in reviewing and
assessing financial performance of KMBA prior to the review of the independent auditor.
The committee has endorsed to the AGM the procurement of the 2017 external auditor.

Treasury Committee

The Treasury Committee reviews, advises, and recommends approval, decision, or action on
financial matters. It is composed of five members: two board members of KMBA, two

members of KDCI board of trustees, and KMBA general manager.

Chairperson : Elizabeth N. Yayon (Adviser)

Members :Judea T. Gutierrez (Member)
Silvida R. Antiquera (General Manager)
Noel P. Tolentino (K-Coop Board Member)
Atty. Eduardo Pangan (K-Coop Board Member)
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Last year, the Treasury Committee held 2 meetings with the following agenda:
(a) Investment on RTB10-5
(b) Investment on Ayala fixed rate bonds

No. of meetings No. of meetings
Name held attended %
Elizabeth N. Yayon 2 2 100%
Judea T. Gutierrez 2 1 50%
Silvida R. Antiquera 2 2 100%
Noel P. Tolentino 2 2 100%
Atty. Eduardo Pangan 2 2 100%

The Treasury Committee were quite active in sending updates via emails about investment
funds, discussing quotations, terms, interest rates, and spread of investments to guide the
management. Their efforts were very helpful in ensuring that investments done are
sustainable, efficient and within the regulations set forth for MBAs by the Insurance
Commission.

Product Development and Innovation Committee

The Product Development and Innovation Committee is responsible for developing new
and/or additional benefit packages and services that meet the emerging needs of members.
The Committee also enhances existing implementing rules and regulations, work flow and
processes, systems and procedures to include claims settlement, and products and services.
The Committee is composed of seven members: three board members, two area
coordinators, and two KDCI| board of trustees members.

Chairperson : Jerlene B. Perez (KEEPF Ge. Manager)
Member : Ma. Teresa G. Bucad (Bocaue)
Luzviminda A. Francisco (Montalban)
Ailene V. Ramos (Sumulong)
Anita L. Manundo (Tandang Sora)

The Product Development and Innovation Committee held 2 meetings in 2016 with the
following agenda:

(@) Submission of project proposal to Citi Foundation through Rimansi

(b) Additional insurance product from Sunlife

No. of meetings No. of meetings
Name held attended %
Jerlene B. Perez 2 2 100%
Ma. Teresa G. Bucad 2 2 100%
Luzviminda A. Francisco 2 2 100%
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Ailene V. Ramos 2 2 100%
Anita L. Manundo 2 2 100%

KMBA through RIMANSI, was able to get funding for the review of its products by an
actuarial. This initiative aimed to enhance its existing products such as increasing of the
number of dependent from the existing 3 to 5, changing the 24-hour eligibility for vehicle
accident hospitalization to 12 hours, and increasing the retirement age from 65 to 70 years
old. The review and assessment started in October 2016 and will end in the third quarter of
2017 where the proposal shall be submitted to the Insurance Commission for approval.

Nomination & Election Committee

The Election Committee formulates and implements election rules and guidelines duly
approved by the general assembly. It is composed of five members: three board members
and two area coordinators.

Chairperson : Marivic R. Loterte

Member  : Evangeline E. Pe (Operations Manager)
Oliver P. Roldan (Bagong Silang)
Teresita D. Padel (Sumulong)
Marilyn C. Aldave (Taytay)

The Nomination and Election Committee held 3 meetings in 2016 with the following agenda:
a) Election guidelines & Proxy voting process;
b) Plans and activities for the AGM;
c) Discuss the provisions in the By-laws related to election of board of trustees
)

d) Recommend to the board of trustees to count and validate the votes at the AGM on
May 31, 2016
No. of meetings No. of meetings
Name held attended %
Marivic R. Loterte 3 1 33%
Evangeline E. Pe 3 3 100%
Ma. Lilibeth Molina 3 3 100%
Josephine Abugan 3 3 100%
Estrelia Medel 3 3 100%

The Nomination and Election Committee played a crucial role in the election of the Board in
2016. Putting in mind the need to ensure greater transparency, accountability and
participative processes; the committee did a proxy voting from every center. The proxy
voting were to get 80% participation from the total membership of KMBA. Thus, KMBA
through the Election Committee ensures that the election process is membership driven
where one member counts as one vote.
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KMBA appointed Roxas, Cruz, Tagle and Co. (formerly BDO Alba Romeo and Co.) to serve in
the counting and validation of the proxy votes including the votes coming from the Board
members and the nominees during the conduct of the AGM.

Committee members Lilibeth Molina and Josephine Abugan are substitute of the original
committee members Marilyn Aldave and Teresita Padel. They were appointed given that
both Aldave and Padel are nominees.

Ethics Committee

The Ethics Committee develops a Code of Governance and Ethical Standards to be observed
by the members, officers, and employees of KMBA, subject to the approval of the board of
trustees and the ratification of the general assembly. The Committee conducts initial
investigation or inquiry upon receipt of a complaint involving illegal or unethical behaviour
such as those states in the Code of Governance and Ethical Standards and submits a report
to the board together with the appropriate sanctions. It is composed of five members: three
board members and two area coordinators.

Chairperson : Elizabeth N. Yayon

Member : Wenifreda F. Rodriguez (Bagong Silang)
Leticia T. Rodriguez (Padilla)
Elizabeth G. Fuentes (Trece)
Marilyn C. Aldave (Taytay)

Last year, the Ethics committee held 2 meetings with the following agenda;
(a) Review on Code of Ethics Manual
(b) Revision of KMBA'’s Code of Ethics Manual

No. of meetings
Name No. of meetings attended %
held
Elizabeth N. Yayon 2 2 100%
Wenifreda F. Rodriguez 2 2 100%
Leticia T. Rodriguez 2 2 100%
Elizabeth G. Fuentes 2 2 100%
Marilyn C. Aldave 2 2 100%

Management Team

The overall responsibility for the day-to-day operations of KMBA rests on the General
Manager. As head of the management team, the general manager provides general
directions, supervision, management, and administrative control on all the operating units
subject to such limitations as set forth by the board of trustees or the general assembly.
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In addition to the general manager, six full-time members comprise the management team
which attends to the day-to-day operations of KMBA.

External Auditor

The External Auditor is independent of KMBA and reports to the association’s board of
trustees. In the selection of external auditors, KMBA is in compliance with the Insurance
Commission Circular No. 29-2009 dated 10 November 2009, “the revised guidelines on
accreditation of auditing firms and external auditors”.

For 2016, the Financial Statement of KMBA were audited by the external auditor Roxas, Cruz,
Tagle and Co., (formerly BDO ALBA ROMEO & CO.)! The fees incurred by KMBA for BDO ALBA
ROMEO & CO’s services amounted to One hundred eighty one thousand five hundred pesos
(P181,500), exclusive of VAT and out of pocket expenses.

The Roxas, Cruz, Tagle and Co., (BDO ALBAROMEO & CO.) has been engaged by KMBA solely
to perform audit services.

Internal Auditor

The Internal Auditor provides independent and objective evaluation of KMBA’s financial and
operational business activities, including its corporate governance, as well as evaluation of
operational efficiencies, and reports directly to the board of trustees.

KMBA shares internal audit services with the K-Coop. Ms. Hazel Pamela Bonifacio, Internal
audit manager conducts audit on a quarterly basis and upon request if needed.

Corporate Governance Update

KMBA remains committed to ensuring that the association abide by the rules and regulations
set forth for Mi-MBAs. It shall also put into practice the values of good corporate governance
such as participatory engagement with all stakeholders, transparency and accountability.
The association has already developed a Governance Manual which was uploaded in its
website and updated based on approved policies and other rules and regulations set forth
by the Board. Any updates or changes in the association’s policies shall be posted in the
website and disclosed to members during meetings/ briefings.

Code of Ethics

The Association have adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics? that are required to be
observed and complied by all members of the Board of Trustees, officers and employees in
dealing with members and other stakeholders within and outside the association. It also
describes the behavioural standards expected from a trustee so that he or she can better
understand and meet the expectations and requirements of the organization and regulators.
Included in the Code are the standards of conduct for ensuring the proper discharge of
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duties and responsibilities, adopting the basic principle that a trustee should not use his or
her position to make profit or to acquire benefit or advantage for himself or herself and/or
his or her related interests, avoiding situations that would compromise his or her
impartiality; maintaining professional integrity; and enhancing skills, knowledge, and
understanding of association’s operations and related activities. It is also expected that they
shall maintain transparency at all times and be accountable to their actions, decisions or
dealings.

Risk Management

As part of the effective management processes, the KMBA’s Risk Management Policy
provides guidelines to the Board of Trustees, officers and management staff that can be
applied to help manage risks before it affects KMBA. The Board of Trustees regularly review
and assess the risks that KMBA faced in all areas of work and plan for the management of
risks. The risks that KMBA may face are categorized as follows:

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Association will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as these fall due and or from lack of funding to finance its growth and capital
expenditures and working capital requirements.

The Association’s approach to manage its liquidity profile are to ensure that adequate
funding is available at all times; to meet commitments as these arise without incurring
unnecessary costs; and to be able to access funding when needed. The Board and the
Management shall work closely to manage this risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Association’s exposure to impairment
is not significant.

Member credit risk is managed by managing and analysing the credit risk for each new
member before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered.
Outstanding receivables are regularly monitored. The credit quality of the Association’s
financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired is considered to be good quality and
expected to be collectible without incurring any credit losses.

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by ensuring that the Association’ deposit
arrangements are with reputable and financially sound counterparties.
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The Association’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of other counterparties, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts as follows:

2016 2015 2014
Cash in Bank P56,953,300 P43,960,526 P17,368,899
Receivables 3,828,671 2,747,379 5,093,4652
Available for Sale Financial 15,393,796 15,615,901 15,179,142
Assets
Held to Maturity Investment 86,678,366 75,678,366 75,678,366
P162,854,133 P138,002,172 P113,319,859

The credit quality of the Association’s financial assets is evaluated using internal credit
rating.

Financial assets are considered as high grade if the counter parties are not expected to
default in settling their obligations, thus, credit risk exposure is minimal. These counter
parties include banks, related parties and members who pay on or before due date. Credit
quality per class of financial assets

The Association’s bases in grading its financial assets are as follows:

High grade - These are receivables which have a high probability of collection (the
counterparty has the apparent ability to satisfy its obligation and the security on the
receivables are readily enforceable).

Standard - These are receivables where collections are probable due to the reputation and
the financial ability of the counterparty to pay but have been outstanding for a certain period
of time.

Substandard - These are receivables that can be collected provided the Association makes
persistent effort to collect them.

Compliance Risk

Compliance Risk arise from violations or non-conformity to laws, rules and regulations,
circulars, and prescribed practices of Insurance Commission and other regulatory bodies
that may expose to fines and penalties by the regulatory bodies. The Association makes sure
its compliance to its Manual of Corporate Governance and other compliance policies.
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Financial Performance Indicators

KMBA complies with the financial policies of the Insurance Commission, which includes
administrative costs do not exceed 20 percent of the total gross revenue. It also complies
with the high ratio in Risk Based Capital (RBC) Framework requirement.

In 2016, KMBA’s operating expense are at 19.5 percent of our gross premium collection from
19.8% in 2015. KMBA’s RBC ratio is at 914%.

Non-Financial Performance Indicators

We have consistently met our goal of providing claims settlements within 24 hours upon
receipt of complete documents. The Microinsurance MBA Association of the Philippines, Inc.
(MiMAP) has ranked KMBA No. 1 in terms of compliance with the 24-hour claim settlement
policy. This shows our dedication to providing efficient services, ensuring that our members
and their families receive the claims at the time when they need it most.

Policy on Dividends

KMBA does not declare dividends to members. Its income goes directly to members’
benefits through an increase in the guaranty fund. In compliance with the Insurance Code,
KMBA refunds 50 percent of members’ premium contributions when they withdraw
membership from KMBA. KMBA also releases 100 percent of members’ accumulated
retirement savings fund upon reaching the exit age or upon withdrawal of membership from
KMBA.

KMBA does not declare dividends to members. Its income goes directly to members’
benefits through product reinsurance, scholarships and other financial assistance to
members affected by calamities. In compliance with the Insurance-approved product, KMBA
refunds 50 percent of members’ premium contributions when they withdraw membership
from KMBA. KMBA also releases 100 percent of members’ accumulated retirement savings
fund upon reaching the exit age or upon withdrawal of membership from KMBA.

Supplier

The Association has a policy that covers the selection, bidding and approval process for the
selection of the suppliers. The Association usually considers the following factors in selecting
suppliers: a) cost, b) quality of service, c) efficiency, and d) relationship of the supplier to the
association.

The Association prohibits transactions involving solicitation, directly or indirectly accepting

any gifts, commission and any other form of payment from members, suppliers and other
parties in exchange for any favourable treatment.
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The Person in Charge and leads the selection, bidding and approval of suppliers is the
association’s general manager:

Silvida Reyes-Antiquera
General Manager, KMBA
Tel/Fax: (632) 990-7915
sreyes antiquera@yahoo.com

Related Party Transaction

Related party transactions between KMBA and any of its partner organizations and related
“party” shall be disclosed. Related party includes (a) Board of Trustee members of KMBA, its
sister organization (KDCI), and partner organizations; (b) the general manager and key
officers, including anyone who directly reports to the board of trustees; and (c) any person
whose judgement or decisions could be influenced as a consequence of an arrangement or
relationship between or involving themselves and any of the persons mentioned above.

Procedures for call for suppliers, selection, bidding, and approval shall be made available
and disclosed to all members through the association’s website.

Environment-friendly Value Chain

KMBA ensure that environmental and social consciousness are incorporated in the day to
day operations of the association. This is for the benefit of all its stakeholders, employees
and all the community in which it operates.

It also continues to implement initiatives to support its advocacy on environment awareness
and sustainable development by implementing “reduce and reuse” of office supplies.

Protecting the whistle blower

Confidentiality

All reports will be treated with utmost care and confidentiality. KMBA will make every effort
to protect the identity of the whistle blower from disclosure to any third party, unless
compelled by law during the conduct of legal proceedings. KMBA also expects the same level
of confidentiality from the whistle blower.

Retaliation and Harassment
KMBA commits to protect those who report in good faith from retaliation, harassment and
other forms of threat. KMBA ensure that necessary action will be strictly enforced.
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KMBA will then confirm and validate if the report made is in good faith. However, if the
report is done with malicious intent, for personal gain or bias, or based on false or misleading
information, the whistle blower may lose his/her protection and KMBA may decide to

impose a disciplinary action against the whistle blower.

Procedures for filling a complaint:

KMBA at present does not have a formal policy on filling and accepting complaints on illegal
and unethical behaviour. The Board and the Management are working to ensure that this
policy shall be set in place immediately.

For complaints against KMBA employees or members of its value chain, the President of the
association shall receive the complaints (illegal or unethical behaviour) and shall treat it with
utmost confidentiality. This can be done in confidence or anonymously.

Below is the contact information of the KMBA president:

Isabel M. lliw-Iliw
President, KMBA (201-2019)
Mobile# 09300111167
isabeliliwiliw@gmail.com

Key Officers and Employees’ Capacity Development
To contribute to employees’ continuous growth, KMBA sends them to trainings and
seminars, and organizes capacity-building activities for staff. In 2016, KMBA'’s staff
participated in the following activities:

DATE TOPIC PARTICIPANT Designation VENUE
Elizabeth N. Yayon | Incumbent President
MICROINSURANCE | Judea T. Gutierrez | Incumbent Treasurer Insurance
January 25, FORUM: The 4P's | Ailene V. Ramos Member Commission
2016 Marketing of Ma. Jona K. Member Building, 1071 UN
Microinsurance Parolan Avenue Manila

March 28, 2016

April 02, 2016

Workshop on the
Revised Annual
Statement Report
ASEAN Corporate
Governance
Scorecard
Performance of
Mi-MBAs
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Evangeline E. Pe

Evelyn A. Lagmay

Silvida R.
Antiquera
Analyn A. Shih

Operations Manager

Finance Manager

General Manager

Exec. Assistant

Discovery Suites,
ADB Avenue,
Ortigas City

New Horizon
Hotel,
Mandaluyong City
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DATE TOPIC PARTICIPANT Designation VENUE
Revised Aquarius Function
Performance Room, Diamond
May 03, 2016 Standards for Evelyn A. Lagmay Finance Manager Hotel Roxas Blvd.
Microinsurance Manila
Isabel M. lliw-lliw | BoT President
Marissa A. Loyola Treasurer
Maritess G. Bucad Member
Anita L. Manundo Member
September 30, Training on llzzzilseesth G Member Alitagtag Nature
2016 Parliamentary Marivic R, Loterte | Member Retreat, Alitagtag
Procedure Allene V. Ramos Member Batangas City
Isabel N. Yayon Adviser
Martiniana G. Adviser
Mancio
Chona B. Capayas Adviser

October 20-21,
2016

October 25-27,
2016

November 8,
2016

November 22-
25,2016

Governance &
AMLA Workshop

AOA Training 2016

MICROHEALTH
SEMINAR:
Strengthening the
Universal Health
Care System
Management
Forum: Managing
Mi-MBA Enterprise
Risks
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Isabel M. Iliw-1liw
Marissa A. Loyola

Richard L.
Monteron

Silvida R.
Antiquera

Evangeline E. Pe

Isabel M. Iliw-iliw
Silvida R.
Antiquera
Evangeline E. Pe
Evelyn A. Lagmay

BoT President
Treasurer

Accounts Officer

General Manager

Operations Manager
BoT President
General Manager

Operations Manager
Finance Manager

New Horizon
Hotel,
Mandaluyong City

Toshi Center
Hotel, Tokyo Japan
Insurance
Commission
Building, 1071 UN
Avenue Manila

Hotel St. Ellis,
Legazpi City, Albay
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KMBA Management Team Contact Information

Silvida Reyes-Antiquera
General Manager, KMBA
Tel/Fax: (632) 990-7915
sreyes antiquera@yahoo.com

Evangeline E. Pe
Operations Manager
Mobile no: 639088197715
vangiepe@yahoo.com.ph

Evelyn A. Lagmay
Finance Manager
Mobile no: 639087440393
evelyn.aban27@gmail.com

Diobert F. Calanza

Account Officer

Mobile no: 639178086771
diobertcalanza@yahoo.com

Account Officer
Mobile no: 639428014505
adriansanandres08@gmail.com

Analyn A. Shih

Executive Assistant
Mobile no: 639256505950
analynamalio@gmail.com

Richard L. Monteron
Account Officer

Mobile no: 63969298007
rmonteron21@gmail.com

McQuen R. Abellano

Account Officer

Mobile no: 09214745447
mcguenabellano1430@gmail.com

A
Q
A
-4
9
2
2
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2016 Area Coordinators

LN WNE

PR R R R R R R R
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Judith Tandog

Oliver Roldan

Ma. Teresa Bucad
Estrelia Medel
Leovina Timajo
Josanie Lagnason
Joyce De Leon
Lilibeth Lagnason
Luzviminda Francisco

. Ma. Elsie Pascual

. Ma. Lilibeth Molina
. Nida Tagubar

. Nida Cuizon

. Isabel Iliw-iliw

. Josefina Torres

. Rita Dela Cruz

. Teresita Padel

. Marilyn Aldave
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— Batasan

— Bagong Silang
— Bocaue

— Camarin

— Dasmarifias
— Fairview

— Las Pinas
—Masinag

— Montalban

— Marilao

— Meycauayan
— Novaliches

— Norzagaray
— Padilla

— Marikina

— Sapang Palay
—Sumulong
—Taytay
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IBDQ Roxas Cruz Tagle and Co. S Ao, ) o 134 P

Audit | Tax | Consuiting | BSO W,
Tel: +(632) 844 2016
Fae: «(637) 844 2045

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO ACCOMPANY INCOME TAX RETURN

The Members and the Board of Trustees

Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.,

#5 Don Francisco S5t., Don Enrique Heights
Commonwealth Avenue, Brgy. Holy Spirit, Quezon City

We have audited the financial statements of Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.
(A Nonstack, Nonprofit Organization) (the Association), for the year ended December 31, 2016 on which
we have rendered the attached report dated April 10, 2017.

In compliance with Revenue Regulations No, V-20, we are stating that no partner of our Firm is related
by consanguinity or affinity to the president, manager or Board of Trustees of the Association,

ROXAS CRUZ TAGLE & CO.
(FORMERLY ALBA ROMEO & CO.)

S 5.

Leticia C, Tagle

Partner

CPA Certificate No, 0017358

Tax ldentification No, 123-048-280

PTR No. 5917851, Issusad on January 9, 2017, Makat! City

BOA/PRC Registration No. 0005, issued on December 1, 2015,
effective until December 31, 2018

SEC Accreditation No. 1583-A (Individual), Group A, fssued on September 6, 2016,

effective until September 6, 2019

SEC Accreditation No. 0007-FR-4 (Firm), Group A, issued on July 16, 2015,

effective until July 15, 2018

BIR Accreditation No, 08-001682-6-2014, issued on January 5, 2015,
effective until January 4, 2018

April 10, 2017
Makati City, Philippines

Roxas Criuz Tagle and Co., a Phitippine professional partnership, Is a member of 800 Intematfonal Limited, & UK company
Himited by guarantee, wonmu—uwmmiwmeloommmmummwmm:mm
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IGNACIO XAVIER G. BARRANCO Fagelof 1

Certified Pablic Accoantant

PRACTITIONER'S COMPILATION REPORT

The Board of Trustees and Members

KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFITS ASSOCIATION, INC.
Rm 504 F&L Bldg.,, Commonwealth Ave.,,

Bgy Holy Spirit, Q.C.

| have compiled the accompanying financial statements of KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL
BENEFITS ASSOCIATION, INC. based on the Information you have provided. These
financial statements for KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFITS ASSOCIATION, INC.: which
comprise the statements of assets, liabllities and fund balance of KASAGANA-KA
MUTUAL BENEFITS ASSOCIATION, INC. as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the
statements of revenues and expenses, statements of changes in fund balance and
statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

| performed this compilation engagement in accordance with Philippine Standard on
Related Services 4410 (Revised), Compilation Engagements.

I have applied my expertise In accounting and financial reporting to assist you in the
preparation and presentation of these financial statements on the basis of Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards. | have complied with relevant ethical requirements,
including principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care.

These financial statements and the accuracy and completeness of the information used
to compile them are your responsibility.

Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, | am not required to
verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you provided to me to compile
these financial statements, Accordingly, | do not express an audit opinion or a review
conclusion on whether these financial statements are prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

OA'Accreditation No. 0436
BIR Accredltation No. 07-000502-2-2015

April 10, 2017
Unit 4088 Web fet Bidg, Quezon Ave. comer BMA Ave, Q.C Emuil Address: chitobarrancod@yaboe. com
Telephooe No. (632) 345-8453, 7110566 Mabhile Phone: (63) 917-800091 3
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preparation and presentation of these financial statements on the basis of Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards. | have complied with relevant ethical requirements,
including principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care.

These financial statements and the accuracy and completeness of the information used
to compile them are your responsibility.

Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, | am not required to
verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you provided to me to compile
these financial statements, Accordingly, | do not express an audit opinion or a review
conclusion on whether these financial statements are prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

OA'Accreditation No. 0436
BIR Accredltation No. 07-000502-2-2015

April 10, 2017
Unit 4088 Web fet Bidg, Quezon Ave. comer BMA Ave, Q.C Emuil Address: chitobarrancod@yaboe. com
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KASAGANA-KA
Mutual Banedit Association, Ing.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The management of Kasagana Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. is responsible for all Information
and representations contalned in the Annual Income Tax Retum for the year ended December 31,
2016, Management fs likewise responsible for all information and representations contained in the
financlal statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return covering the same reporting
period. Furthermore, the management is responsible for all information and

contained in all the other tax returns filed for the reporting period, including, but not limited, to the
Value-Added Tax and/or percentage tax retums, withholding tax retumns, documentary stamp tax
returns, and any and all other tax returns.

In this regard, the management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2016 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Retum are in accordance with
the books and records of the Association, complete and correct in all materfal respects. Management
lkewise affirms that:

(a) the Annual Income Tax Retum has been prepared In accordance with the provisions of the
National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other
Issuances of the Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Revenue;

(b) any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financial
statements pursuant to financlal accounting standards and the preparation of the income tax
retumn pursuant to tax accounting rules has been reported as reconciling items and
maintained In the Association's books and records In accordance with the requirements of
Revenue Regulations No. B-2007 and other relevant issuances; and

(€} the Association has filed all applicable tax returns, reports and statements required to be
filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all taxes and other impositions
shown thereon to be due and payable have been paid for the reporting period, except those

contested in good faith.
- ; ' - - e : ! - :-
ISABEL ILIW-ILIW ISABEL ILIW-ILIW
Chairman of the Board President
~ oy o,
APR &4 T T MARKSALOYOLA
|.IL Treasurer

——

this 10th day of April, 2017

#5 Don francisco $treet, Don Enrique Heights, Bigy. Holy Spilt Comymonwealth Ave,, Guezon Clty
Tolefax: (63) 990-7915
Emoi: kangoanaka mbaSigmal.cem
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Audit | Tax | Consulting YA g
Fax 4632} 344 2045
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
The Members and the Board of Trustees R E > s

-Ka Mutual Benefit Assoctation, Inc.
#5 Don Francisco 5t., Don Enrique Heights
Commonwealth Avenue, Brgy. Holy Spint, Quezon City |

Report on the Financial Statements |
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.
(A Nonstock, Nomprofit Organization) (the Assoclation), which comprise the statements of financial
pasition as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in fund balance and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all matertal respects, the financlal position of
the Association as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis far Opinfon

We conducted cur audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditar's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (the Code of Ethics) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with PFRS for SMEs and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due
to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Parent Association's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Parent
Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association's financial preparation

process.
Roxas Cruz Tagle and Co, umwmm,n-mdmummm.mm
Limited by guarantee. BOO is the brand name for the BOO netwark and far each of the 00 mamber firms.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that
include our opinion, Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit is conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when It exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material If, individually or in the
aggregate, they reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements,

As part of our audit In accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that {5 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Assaciation's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
maodify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue
as a going concern

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achleves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the plannad
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
nternal control that we identify during our audit.
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Report on the Supplementary Information Required by the Bureau of internal Revenue (BIR)

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole, The supplementary Information as disclosed fn Note 24 to the financisl statements is
presented for purposes of filing with the BIR and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information is fairy
stated In all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

ROXAS CRUZ TAGLE & CO.
(FORMERLY ALBA ROMEO & CO.)

S

Partner
CPA Certificate No, 0017358
Tax Identification No. 123-048-280
PTR No. 5917851, Issued on January 9, 2017, Makati City
BOA/PRC Registration No, 0005, issued on December 1, 2015,
effective until December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No. 1583-A (Individual), Group A, issued on September 6, 2016,
effective until September 6, 2019
SEC Accreditation No. 0007-FR-4 (Firm), Group A, tssued on July 16, 2015,
effective until July 15, 2018
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001682-6-2014, issued on January 5, 2015,
effective until January 4, 2018

April 10, 2017
Makati City, Philippines
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KASAGANA-XA MUTUAL SENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC,
(a Nomstock, Not-for-profit Association)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

Note 2016 2015
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents o 796,993,300 743,960,526
Recetvables 7 3,828,671 2,747,379
Other current assets ] 340,429 173,274
Total current assets 61,122,400 46,881,179
Nancurrent assets
Avaftable for-cale financial assets v 15,393,796 15,615,901
Held-to-maturity Investments 10 86,678,306 75,678,360
Advances to contractor n 1,219,366 -
Proporty and equipment, net 12 412,412 490,543
Other noncurment assets 3 253,406 -
Total noncurrent assets 103,967,346 91,784,810
Total assets P165,089,746 F138,665,989
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Current [lahitities
Trade and cther payables “ P947,821 P330,032
Lisbitity on Individual equity value - 3,922,456 4,154,140
Aggregate reserve for trust ltability 15 6,054,684 5,285,854
Basic contingent benef®t reserve 15 200,509 164,503
Optional benefit reserve 15 748,406 761,658
Claims payabie on batic cantingent benefit % 486,273 268,175
Total current Habilities 13,160,149 11,968,375
Noncurrent Habilities
Liability o0 individusl equity value 15 63,381,945 39,761,468
Aggregate reserve for trust llabiiny 15 29,275,50% 23,780,311
Retroment bonefit obligation "% 588,511 626,219
Total noncurrent liabilities 93,245,951 84,170,016
~Totel Hlabilitles 106,406,130 96,136,391
FURD BALANCE |
401 ¢ Restricted balance 7 22,977,037 20,304,408
Unrestricted bafance 7 35,706,579 22,125,1%
Total Mb?mu 58,683,614 42,529,5%%
T Total thabitities and fund balance P165,089,746 138,665,589

(The notes on pages 5 to 50 are Integral part of these financial statements. )
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KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFTT ASSOCIATION INC,
(@ Non-stock, Not-for-profit Association)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENOED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

Note 2016 2015

Rovenue 0 739,770,964 P36,114,673
BenefM exponses
Allocation for Habdlity on Individual equity (12,394,537) (11,583 3409
Benefit/clalms expenses « BLIP 16,951,019) {5,693,005)
Benaflt/claims expenses - Equity value 13,648,112) {3,708,696)
Benef it/ claing experses - CLIP 11,390,000} (1,208,419
Collection fees {1,109,150) (1,007,138)
Other expenses for members (866,724) {601,263
Increase/decresss In aggregate reserve for trust IRbility (657,067) (S o]
Increase/docreass in reserve for basic contingent fund (253,545) 357
Increase/decrease in Liabiity on individual equity 8,995,303 .
Increase/decresse i reserve for optional benefit 15,262 (165,435)

Total benafit expense (18,260,389) (24,544,544
Revenue before operating expense 21,510,175 11,570,129
Operating expenses n 7,963,418) 16,658,438)
Revenue from operations 13,546,757 4,911,691
Finance income 4610 4,420,930 4,102,617
Net revenue 17,967,687 9,014,308
Other comprehesive income
itern that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Unrealized gain (1053} on AFS financlal assets 4 (222,108) 436,759

Actuarial gain (Joss) on defined benefit obligation 19 78,460 (260,303)
Other comprohesive Income (loss) for the year (143,645) 176,456
Total compeahensive income P17,824,042 79,190,764

(The notes on pages 5 to 50 are Integral part of these finonclal statements. )
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KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC,
(o Non-stock, Not for-profit Assoclation)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

Note 2016 05
Cash flows from operating activities
Net revenue P17,967,687 P9,014,308
Adjustments for:
Depeeciation 72t 327,595 342,739
Retirement benefit cost 19,21 201,048 185,221
Gan on sale of equipments 7 3,609) -
Finance income 4,610 (4,420,930} (4,102,617)
Operating profit before working capital changes 14,071,791 5,439,651
{Increase) decresse in:
Recercables (578,824) 2,346,071
Other current assets (167,155) (42,763)
ncresse (decrease) In:
Trade and other payables 617,789 {283,353)
Basic contingent bonefit resorve 36,008 R3 2
Opticnal benefit reserve (15,262) 165,435
Claims payable on basic contingant benefit 118,098 1,43
Cash gonerated from operations 14,182,442 7,629,013
Finance Income received 3,918,462 4,102,617
Net cath provided by operating activities 18,100,905 11,731,630
Cash flows from Investing activities
Acquisition of held-to-maturity favestment 10 (11,000,000)
Advances to contractor 1" (1,219,368 -
Acquisition of property and equipment 1z (261,508) {172,199)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 17 6,083 <
Increase in other pancurment assets (253,406) -
Net cash used in investing activities (12,728,627) (172,199}
Cash flows from financing sctivities
Payment of retirement liability " (160,29¢) (293,688)
Increase In (lability on ndividual equity value 3,386,792 11,583,340
Incraase in aggregate reserve for trust liabiliy 6,064,024 5,360 612
Decrease In fund balance (1,670,024) (1,634,078)
Net cash pravided by financing activities 7,620,496 15,025,196
Net Increase In cash and cash equivalents 12,992,774 26,584,627
Cash and cash squivalents
Janunry 1 & 43,960,526 17,375,899
December 31 & 96,953,300 P43,960,526

(The notes an poges 3 to S0 are integral port of these financial statements. )
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KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(a Non-stock, Not-for-profit Association)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1- GENERAL INFORMATION

ka Mutual Benefit Association Inc. (the Association) was organized and incorporated
mmuwsdmwkammummwmmmwmwm
Commisson (SEC) on June 29, 2006 per SEC Registration Number CN200610153. The Association Is
pﬂmaruyenmedwpramumwelfueofmepo«;tomdﬂmd:lwmotom
members in the form of death benefit, medical subsidy, pension and loan redemption assistance;
aﬂdmmrecuntimndaccesstobenoﬂtsmdreswmubyacﬂvdylnvolmmminm
direct management of the Association that will include fmplementation of policies and procedures
geared towards sustainabllity and improved services.

The Association s a nonstock, nonprofit entity that no part of the income, which the Association
myobuinasanMdemtoluopmﬂms.shaubedmmedsdmdmdswmmcmbm,
mmamnMMtommdwcwmﬁmcmmmm.mem
obtaincdwmm:nmnanwltdtumm,Mumemﬂh
used for the furtherance of its purpose,

The Association's registered office address, which is also its principal place of business, is located
at #5 Don Francisco St., Don Enrique Heights Commonwealth Avenue, Brgy. Holy Spirit, Quezon
City.

1.1 Approval of financial statements

Theﬁnandllmtemnudﬂwhwﬂaﬂonhavebmamedmdwﬂwﬂudmmmwm
Board of Trustees (BOT) on April 10, 2017, The Association’s General Manager, Silvida Antiquera
mauﬂnﬂudbymeGOTlougnhrandonmldmwT.wnppravamdcnuothe
submission of the audited financial statements.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation and accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied In the preparation of the Association’s financial
mwmnummwtbelow.Mpdmhnwbmmmnyapplummmn
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Association have been prepared In accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS)uiuwdbymeﬂma{mmsw\OMComdl. and
adopted by SEC.

The SEC issued a notice on October 11, 2010 allowing SMEs exemption from the mandatory

adoption of PFRS For SMEs. Based on the exception criteria that it is a holder of a secondary license
wwmumws.mmmmmwumsrmm
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Basis of measurement and presentation

The Association’s financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets which have been measured at fair value,

Functional currency

The financial statements are prepared In Philippine Peso (P), which is the Association’s functional
and presentation currency. All values are rounded to the nearest peso, except when otherwise
stated,

Use of judgments and estimates

n\epmpanmnonheﬂnmcinlsutemenuqunceMthPFRanmthtudum
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Association’s management to exercise judgment
in applying the Association’s accounting policies. The areas where significant judgments and
estimates have been made In preparing the Association's financial statements and their effects are
disclosed In Note 3.

Amendments to PFRS 10 Consolidated Financlal Statements, PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities and PAS 28 Investments in Assoclates and Joint ventures: The amendments clarify
a number of aspects of PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28 In relation to the Investment entities
consolidation exception:

i) How Intermediate parent entities should apply the general scope exemption from
preparing consolidated financial statements provided by PFRS 10.4, when the ultimate
parent is an Investment entity.

The amendments clarify that so long as the entity’s ultimate (or intermediate) parent
produces financial statements that are in compliance with PFRS 10 (including an
uwamntenmyuutmmsforlutnminwdismdmaafakvamnw
than consolidating them), the exemption fs avallable to the intermediate parent entity
from presenting its own consolidated financial statements {so long as the other criteria of
PFRS 10.4(a) have been met).

(1) How an Investment entity parent should account for a subsidiary that provides services
related to its investment activities and Is also Itself an Investment entity

The amendments clarify that an investment entity parent consolidates a subsidiary only
when!

- The subsidiary is not itself an investment entity, and

- The subsidiary's main purpose is to provide services that relate to the investment entity's
investment activities,

(ilf)  How PFRS 12 should be applied to an investment entity
The amendments clarify that an Investment entity that prepares financial statements in
which all of its subsidiaries are measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) is
qumdtopmmlmedtsdommn(wmtoﬁmsmmuduumwedbymm

fiv)  How a non-investment entity should account for its interests in any associates or joint
ventures that are investment entities
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The amendments clarify that for an entity that is not itself a lavestment entity but has an

applied
by the investment entity associata or Joint venture to account for Its own interests in its
subsidiaries.

Amendments to PFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: The amendments require an entity to apply all of
the principies of PFRS 3 Business Combinations when 1t acquires an interest in 3 joint operation
that constitutes a business as defined by PFRS 3.

The amendment also includes two new llustrative Bamples:

«  Example 7: Accounting for acquisitions of Interests in joint operaticas in which the activity
constitutes a business
Example 8: Contributing the right to use know-how to 3 joint operation in which the activity
constitutes a business.

A consequential amendment to PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of international Finencial Reporting
Standards has also been made, to clarify that the exemption from applying PFRS 3 to past business
combinations upon mdnmmmmmwdwhmm
hmmmdhﬂmmﬁnmn

PFRS 14 regulatory Deferral Accounts: PFRS 14 is an intenim standard, pending the outtome aof
the PASE's more comprobensive Rato-regulated Activitios project, which was re-opened n
September 2092,

In many countries, industry sectors (including utilities such as gas, electricity and water) are
subject to rate regulation where governments regulate the supply and pricing. This can have a
significant effect on the amount and timing of an entity’s revenue, Some national GAAPs require
m,u&mmmmwwmmummmm
and liabili

The scope of PFRS 14 is narrow, with this extending to cover coly those entities that:

« Are first-time adopters of PFRS

« Conduct rate regulated activities

+ Recognize associated assets and/or labilities in accordance with their current national GAAP.

Entities within the wcope of PFRS 14 would be afforded an option to apply their previous local GAAP
accounting policies for the recognition, measurement and Impatrment of assets and labilities
arising from rate reguiation, which would be termed regulatory deferral account balances.

Any regulatory deferral account balances, and their associated effect on profit or loss, would be

and presented separately from other items in the primary financial statements, As a
result, for those entities that elect to adopt PFRS 14, all other line items and subtotals would
exciude the effects of regulatory deferral accounts, meaning that they would be comparable with
other entities that report in accordance with PFRS but do not apply PFRS 4.

Application guidance is Included in PERS 14 In respect of other PFRSs that would nesd to be

statements, including:

+ PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Penad

« PAS 12 Income Taxes

« PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
- PAS 33 Eamings per Share

~ PAS 36 impairment of Assets
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- PFRS 3 Business Combinations

- PFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
- PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

« PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities.

Amendments to PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: The amendments made to PAS 1

include:

- Materiglity: Aggregation or disaggregation should not obscure wseful Information, Materiality
applies to each of the primary financial statements, the notes and each specific disclosure
required by PFRSs,

- Line items in primary financial stotements: Additional guidance for the line items required to
be presented in primary statements, in particular that it may be appropriate for these to be

ated, and new requirements regarding the use of subtotals.

- Notes to the financial statements: Determination of the order of the notes should include
consideration of understandability and comparability of financlal statements. It has been
clarified that the order listed in PAS 1.114(c) is {llustrative only.

- Accounting policies: Removal of the examples in PAS 1.120 in respect of income taxes and
forelgn exchange gains and losses.

In addition, the following amendments to PAS 1 were made which arose from a submission received

by the PFRS Interpretations Committee:

- Equity accounted Investments: An entity’s share of other comprehensive incame will be split
between those items that will and will not be reclassified to profit or loss, and presented in
aggregate as single line items within those two groups.

Amendments to PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and PAS 38 intangible Assets
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amartization

PAS 16 has been amended to prohibit the use of revenue-based methods of depreciation for items
of property, plant and equipment. This Is because the revenue generated by an activity that
includes the use of an item of property, plant and equipment generally reflects factors other than
the consumption of the economic benefits of the item, such as:

- Other inputs and processes

- Selling activities and changes in sales

- Volumes and prices, and

- Inflation.

Guidance on depreciation has been expanded to state that expected future reductions in the
selling price of items produced by an item of property, plant and equipment could indicate
technical or commercial obsolescence (and therefore a reduction In the economic benefits
embodied in the item), rather than a change in the depreciable amount or period of the item.

PAS 38 has been amended to incorporate a rebuttable presumption that Amortization based on
revenue is not appropriate. The presumption can be rebutted if either:

- The intangible asset Is expressed as a measure of revenue; or

;“mkmmwand the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly

Amendments to PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and PAS 41 Agriculture: The
amendments extend the scope of PAS 16 to include bearer plants and define a bearer plant as a
living plant that:

- 13 used In the production process of agricultural produce,

- Is expected to bear produce for more than one perfod; and

- Has a remote likelihood of being sold (except incidental scrap sales).
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The changes made result in bearer plants being accounted for in accordance with PAS 16 using
either:

- The cost model, or

- The revaluation model.

As such, bearer plants are no longer within the scope of PAS 41. However, the agricultural produce
of bearer plants remains within the scope of PAS 41,

The amendments include the following transitional reliefs for the purposes of first time

application:

- Deemed cost exemption - Entities are allowed to use the fair value of the bearer plants at the
beginning of the earliest perod presented as deemed cost for PAS 16 purposes,

- Disclosures - Quantitative information describing the effect of the first time application as
required by PAS 8.28(f) fs not required for the current reporting period, but is required for
each prior period presented.,

Amendments to PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements: The amendments include the introduction
of an option for an entity to account for Its Investments In subsidiaries, joint ventures, and
associates using the equity method in its separate financial statements. The accounting approach
that s selected is required to be applied for each category of investment.

Before the amendments, an entity accounted for its Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures: or
associates either at cost or in accordance with PFRS 9 Financlal Instruments (or PAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Megsurement for those entities that have yet to adopted PFRS 9).
The option to present its investments using the equity method result in the presentation of a share
of profit or loss, and other comprehensive Income, of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the equity accounted investment in the
statement of financlal position. Any dividends received are deducted from the carrying amount of
the equity accounted Investment, and are not recorded as income in profit or lass,

A conseguential amendment was also made to PAS 28 Investments in Associates end Joint
Ventures, to avoid a potential conflict with PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements for partial
sell downs,

Amendments to PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of information 'elsewhere in the
interim financial report': PAS 34 requires certain disclosures to be presented in the notes to the
interim financial report, unless they are presented elsewhere in the interim financial report (such
as a front end management report).

If the disclosures are presented ‘elsewhere’ in the interim financial report, such as In the
management commentary or the risk report of an entity, a cross reference must be made from the
notes to the interim financial statements to where the disclosures have been made. Further, if the
disclosures are contained In a separate document from the interim report, that document needs to
be available on the same terms and at the same time as the interim report Itself.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012 - 2014 Cycle)

PFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in methods of

: The amendment clarifies that the reclassification of an asset or disposal group from being
held for sale to being held for distribution to owners, or vice versa {s considered to be a
continuation of the original plan of disposal. Upon reclassification, the classification, presentation
and measurement requirements of PFRS 5 are applied. If an asset ceases to be classified as held for
di:tﬁl::llmtnowmn.mm«mtsoﬂmSforasseuu:atcensetobechssiﬂeduheedfor
sale apply.
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PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The amendments to PFRS 7 dealt with two aspects:
servicing of contracts and the applicability in interim financial statements of the offsetting
amendments made to PFRS 7 in December 2011,

) Servicing contracts

The PASB clarified the circumstances in which an entity has continuing involvement from
the servicing of a transferred asset. Continuing involvement exists If the servicer has a
future interest in the performance of the transferred financial asset. Examples of situations
where continuing involvement exist are where a transferor's servicing fee is:

- A variable fee which is dependent on the amount of the transferred asset that is
ultimately recovered; or

- A fixed fee that may not be paid in full because of non-performance of the transferred
financial asset.

The amendment s required to be applied retrospectively in accordance with PAS &
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. However, the amendment
does not need to be applied for any perlod beginning before the annual period In which the
entity first applies the amendments. A consequential amendment has been made to PFRS 1
First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, In order that the same
transitional provision applies to first time adopters,

(1) Applicability of offsetting in condensed interim financial statements

A further amendment to PFRS 7 has clarified that the application of the amendment
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to PFRS 7) issued in
December 2011 s not explicitly required for all interim periods. However, it is noted that
in some cases these disclosures may need to be included in condensed intenim financial
statements in order to comply with PAS 34,

PAS 19 Employee benefits - Discount rate - regional market issue: The guldance In PAS 19 has
been clarified and requires that high quality corporate bonds used to determine the discount rate
for the accounting of employee benefits need to be denominated in the same currency as the
related benefits that will be paid to the employee,

Entities are required to apply the amendment from the earliest comparative period presented in
the financial statements, with initial adjustments being recognized in retained eamings at the
beginning of that period,

after December 31, 2016

PFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014): In July 2014 the PASB published PFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (2014) which Incorporated the final requirements on all three phases of the financla
instruments projects - classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting.
original version of PFRS 9, fssued in 2009, introduced new criteria for the classification
measurement of financial assets to be measured at amortised cost. In order to qualify for
amortised cost measurement, a two stage test is applied, Firstly, the entity's business model must
be to collect the contractual cash flows from the asset, rather than selling It to realise its falr
value. Secondly, the asset must have contractual cash flows which are comprised solely of the
principal amount due plus interest on the principal amount outstanding (which s only time value
plus a margin for credit risk), often referred to as "SPPI’, Financial assets that pass those two tests
are measured at amortised cost, with all others being measured at fair value. The criteria are
applied 1o the assels as a whole, with the previous guidance in PAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for embedded derivatives no longer applying to financial assets,

7:k
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PFRS 9 (2014) introeduces amendments to the previously finalised classification and measurement
wrmummm.nmmummmmmmmmdfmm
instruments - FVTOCI, This new measurement category appiies to debt Instruments that meet the
Solely Paymonts of Principal and Interest (SPP1) contractual cash flow characteristics test and
where the entity 1s holding the debt Instrument to both collect the contractual cash flows and to
sell the financial assets, Additional application guldance was tncluded to clarify the requirements
for contractual cash flows of a financial asset to be regarded as glving rise to payments that are
SPPL

The classification and measurement requirements for financlal labllities were first added to PFRS 9
in 2010 and have been carried forward from PAS 39 largely unchanged, including a continuation of
the requirement to separate embedded derivatives, However & significant change is that, if a
financial Liability 1s designated {under the option available in PFRS 9) as at fair value through profit
or 1055, changes in the fair value of that financial I1ability that are attributable to changes in the
entity's own credit risk will typically be recorded in Other Comprehonsive Incoms Instead of profit
or loss. This change has been made in order Lo prevent a deterioration in an entity’s financial
position (and hence credit status) resulting in gains belng reported fn prafit or 1085,

The existing guidance for derecognition of financial assets and Uabilities has been carried forward
from PAS 39 unchanged, with some improvemsants to disclosure requiremnents being added to PFRS 7
Financial Instruments; Disclosures,

For the impairment of financial aysets, a new ‘expectod loas’ model in PFRS 9 (2014) replaces the
“incurred loss' modet In PAS 39. The new impairment requirements will affect all entities with
financial assats that are not measured at fair value through. profit or loss and are likely to bring
significant changes. Provisions for trade receivables will need to be determined using & forward
locking approach and, while for some entities the provisions may be relatively straightforward to
calculate, the approach s significantly different and more complex in comparison to the incurred
foss model, and new systems and processes may well be needed, For financial fnstitutions the
changes are likely to be very significant and require major changes to intemal systems and
processes in order to capture the required information.

The hedge sccounting requiroments of PFRS 9 are also significantly different from those set out in
PAS 39, and are designed to align hedge accounting more closely with entities’ risk management
processes. In practice, 1t will be significantly more straightforward to apply hedge accounting
under the new model and we expect that entitiea that have previously decided not to hedge
account may do so n future,

The effective date of the fully completed version of PFRS 9 (2014) Is for periods beginning on o
after 1 January 2018 with retrospective application. Early application 15 permitted, If an entity’s
date of initisl application (the start of the period In which PFRS 9 is adopted) is befoce 1 Fabruary
2015, there is a choice of which version of PFRS 9 to adopt (2009, 2010, 2013 or 2014). The 2009
verston covered the classification and measurement of financial assets only, the 2010 version added
the classification and measurament of financial Uabilities and derecognition, and the 2013 version
added hedge accounting,

In addition, there ts an option to early adopt the ‘own credit' provisions for financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL) under the fair value option without any of the
other requirements of PFRS 9. This aption will remain available until 1 January 2018,

PFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers: in May 2014, the PASB published PFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The new Standard, which s fully converged with
equivalent new US GAAP guidance ssued at the same time, containg comprehensive guidance for
accounting for revenue and will replace existing requirements which are currently set out |n two
avieting chandsrde (PAS 1R Revenue and PAS 11 Censtruction Contracts) and related interpretations

{IFRIC 13 Custamer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC 31 Revenue - Barter Transactions :
PrRS 15, contans o4 4 i
ins significantly more prescriptive and precise in i
eAsmg PFRS, In future, revenve will be rocognised from mor:plw ication of Wldm 'ﬁ

steps:
1. ldentify the contract

b I e i LS PR

KMBA Annual Report 2016

51



{IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate,
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC 31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving
Advertising Services),

PFRS 15 contains significantly more prescriptive and precise requirements in comparison with
existing PFRS. In future, revenue will be recognised from the application of the following five

steps:

1. Identify the contract

2. Identify the performance obligation(s)

3. Determine the transaction price

4, Allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation

5. Recognise revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied,

The introduction of the new requirements means that for many entities the timing and profile of
revenue recognition will change. In some areas the changes will be very significant and will require
careful planning, including for commercial effects (such as compliance with bank covenants,
performance based remuneration and business combinations),

PFRS 15 Is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with early application
permitted,

In May 2015 the PASB published Exposure Draft ED/2015/2 Effective Date of PFRS 15 which
proposes to defer the effective date of PFRS 15 by one year to 1 January 2018. The reason for
deferring the effective date is that additional changes to PFRS 15 will be proposed in the near
future that stem from the discussions at the PASB and FASB Joint Transition Resource Group for
Revenue Recognition (TRG). The comment deadline ended on 3 July 2015.

At its mesting on 22 July 2015, the PASBE decided to defer the effective date of PFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers to periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,

In addition the change will keep the effective date aligned with the equivalent US GAAP guidance.
The FASB published Accounting Standards Update 2014-09 (ASU) on 29 April 2015, which pr

.mdﬁ«mmaudwmmwwmwanAtitsmeethgon%hly%ls.
the FASB affirmed its proposal to defer the effective date, the final ASU 15 expected to be

published by the end of the third quarter of 2015.

PFRS 16 Leases. PFRS 16 specifies how an PFRS reporter will recognize, measure, present and
disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to
recognize assets and llabilities for all leases unless the lease term Is 12 months or less or the
underlying asset has a low value, Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with
PFRS 16s approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, PAS 17,
PFRS lbm;ﬁgsmdtnhmtyzo%mappuawmurepomnapenodsbqlunngonoram«
January 1, i

2.2 Current versus noncurrent classification

The Association presents assets and llabilities in the statement of financial position based on
current/noncurrent classification. An asset is current when It Is:

Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting peried, or

Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a labitity
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as noncurrent, A lability 15 current when:
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1t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpase of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve moaths after the reporting period, or

There 15 no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Association classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.

2.3 Fair value measurement

The Association measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Also, fair
values of financial instruments measured at amortized cost are disclosed in Note 4,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfor a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement 15 based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

« In the principal market for the asset or lability, or
« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Association.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest,

A falr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
1o generate economic benefits by using the asset In (ts highest and best use or by seiling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Association uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are avallable to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
fnputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and Uabilities for which falr value fs measured or disclosed In the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
fnput that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

« Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Uabilities

e Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowsst level input that fs significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

o Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Association determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels In the hierarchy by re-
mmmamamum[baedmwmesttudiwmudﬂﬂammmhknhn
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Forﬁnpuposeoffairvaluedisclcswes,mamociationhuduomﬂaddassesofmw

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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2.4 Financlal Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability ar equity instrument of another entity,

|. Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (FYPL), loans and receivables, held to maturity (HTM) Investments, available-for-sale (AFS)
financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, In the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade
date, {,e., the date that the Assoclation commits to purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described
below;

{a) Financigl assets ot FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL Include financial assets held for trading and financlal assets designated
upan initial recognition at FVPL.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading If they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging Instruments as defined
by PAS 39. Financial assets at FVPL are carried In the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value presented as finance costs (negative net changes in fair value) or
finance income {positive net changes in fair value) in the statement of comprehensive income,

The Assoclation has financial assets at FVPL as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 (Notes 4 and 9).
(b) Loans and receivables

This category s the most relevant to the Association, Loans and recelvables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
inftial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR, The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the statement of comprehensive income,
The tosses arising from Impairment are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in
finance costs for loans and In general and administrative expenses for recelvables,

The category generally opplies to cash and cash equivalents and receivables in the statement of
financial position (Note 4).
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(€} HTM investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are
classified as HTM when the Assoclation has the positive intention and ability to hold them to
maturity, After Initial measurement, HTM investments are measured at amortized cost using the
EIR, tess impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or preémium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an Integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization Is
included as finance income in the statement of comprehensive income. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in finance costs.

The Association has HTM investments as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 (Note 4).
(d) AFS investments

AFS financial lavestments include equity investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as AFS are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at FVPL.
Debt securities in this category are those that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and that may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the
market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized gains or losses recognized as other comprehensive income and credited In the AFS
reserve until the investment is derecognized, at which time, the cumuiative gain or loss is
recognized in other operating income, or the investment is determined ta be impaired, when the
cumulative loss is reciassified from the AFS reserve to the statement of comprehensive Income in
finance costs. Interest earned while holding AFS financial Investrents Is reported as finance
income using the EIR method,

The Assoclation evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its AFS financial assets in the
near term is still appropriate. When, In rare circumstances, the Association is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s Intention to do so significantly changes
in the foreseeable future, the Assoctation may elect to reclassify these financial assets If the
Association has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity,

For a financial asset reclassified from the AFS category, the fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortized cost and any previous gain or (oss on the asset that has
been recognized in equity is amortized to profit or lass over the remaining life of the investment
using the EIR. Any difference between the new amortized cost and the maturity amount is also
amortized over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset fs subsequently
determinad to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of
comprehensive income.

The Assoclation has AFS financial assets as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 (Note 4),
Derecognition

A financlal asset (or, where applicable, amdaﬂundalm«umdamdﬂmﬂu
financial assets) is primarily derecegnized when

a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) the Association has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without materfal delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (i) the Association has transferred substantially all the
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risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) the Association has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Association has transferred its nights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When It has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Association continues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Association's continuing Involvement, In that case, the
Association also recognizes an assoclated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Association has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of guarantee over transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Association couid be required to pay,

fi, Impairment of financial assets

The Association assesses, at each reporting date, whether there s objective evidence that a
financiat asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if cne or more
events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event'), has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease In the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes In arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults,

Further disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in Notes 3 and 5.
(a) Financial assets carried ot amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Association first assesses whether impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are Individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Association determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an iIndividually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impalrment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impalrment loss Is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The carrying amount of any impalrment loss identified {s measured as the difference between the
assot’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
expected credit losses that have not yet been Incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows 1s discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR,

The carrying amount of the asset Is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss
is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Interest Income (recorded as finance
income in the statement of comprehensive income) continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of Interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans together with the associated allowance are
written off when there Is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been

realized or has been transferred to the Association, If, In a subsequent year, the amount of the

estimated Impairment loss Increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the

impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is Increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account,
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(b) Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence of an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that Is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or of a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity Instrument, the
amount of the loss 1s measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset.

(¢c) AFS investments

For AFS financial Investments, the Association assesses at each reporting date whether there is
objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline fn the fair value of the investment below its cost, ‘Significant’ &5 evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period In which the fair
value has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss -
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
fmpairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the statement of com

Income - is removed from other comprebensive income and recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income. Impairment (osses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or
loss; increases in lhelr falrvaluemer impairment are recognized directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant™ or “prolonged” requires judgment, In making this
judgment, the Association evaluates among other factors the duration or extent to which the fair
value of an investment is less than its cost,

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, the impalrment Is assessed based on the same
eriteria as financial assets carrled at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for
impalrment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the
current falr value, less any impairment loss on that Investment previously recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset,
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. The Interest income s recorded as part of finance Income. If, In a

year, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to
an event occcurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income, the Impairment loss Is reversed through the statement of comprehensive income;

fil. Financial Habilitles

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial lfabilitles are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL and other
financial lfabilities. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Association's financlal Uabilitles comprise other financial liabilities, which Include accrued
expenses and other payables and policy and contract claims payable (Note 4).
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Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described betow:
(a) Financial llabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities at FYPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financtal liabilities
designated upon Initial recognition as at FYPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading If they are Incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term, This category also includes derivative financial Instruments entered
into by the Association that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by PAS 39. Separated embedded derfvatives are also classified as held for trading uniess
they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on labilities held for trading ate recognized In the statement of comprehensive
income.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at FYPL are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in PAS 39 are satisfied.

The Association does not have any liabilities held for trading nor has it designated any financial
liability as being at FVPL.

(b) Other financial labilities

This fs the category most relevant to the Association. After initial recognition, other financial
abilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the lfabilitles are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortizaticn process.

Amortized cost fs calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization Is included as finance costs
in the statement of comprehensive income. -

This category generally applies trade and other payables, aggregate reserves and claims payable on
basic contingent benefit (Notes 14, 15 and 16).

Derecognition

A financial lability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires, When an existing financfal liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing Uability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or madification ts treated as the derecognition of the original lability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income,

fv. Classification of financial instruments between debt and equity
Financial instruments are classified as ljability or equity in accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, galns and losses relating to a financial instrument or
a component that is a financial liability is reported as expense or income,
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v. Offsetting of financlal Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settie on a net basis, to realize the asset and settle the lability
simuitaneously,

2.5 Insurance contracts
Product classification

Insurance contracts under which the Association (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance
risk from another party (the policy holders) by agreeing to compensate the policy holders if a
specified uncertain future event (the frsured event) adversely affects the policy holder. As a
general guideline, the Association determines whether it has significant Insurance risk, by
comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the Insured event did not occur, Insurance
contracts can also transfer financial risks. i
Once a contract has been classified as an Insurance contract, It remains as insurance contract for
the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during the period,
uniess all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired,

Benefits and cleims

Claims constst of benefits and claims paid to policyholders, which include excess gross benefit
claims for unit-tink insurance contract. Death claims, surrenders and non life insurance claims are
recorded on the basis of notifications received, Maturities are recorded when due,

Liability odequocy tests

At each financial reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of
the contract liabilities net of reinsurance assets, In performing these tests, current best estimates
of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as
investment income from assets backing such liabilities are used, Any deficiency 1s Immediately
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and In banks. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three (3) months
or less from dates of placements and that are subject to an Insignificant risk of change in value:

2.7 Receivables

Receivables are recognized initially at the transaction price and are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method, less provision for impalrment. A pravision for impairment of
trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Association will not be
able to cotlect all amounts due according to the original terms of the recelvables.

Other receivables are also measured at initial recognition at transaction price. They are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, ess any impairment.
Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
receiv;:;es when the recogniticn of interest would be immaterial. Bad debts are written off when
identified.
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2.8 Other current assets

Prepayments mmusnuyetlwnrdbutalméypaidinmh Prepayments are
initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash pald. Subsequently, these arp
charged to statement of comprehensive Income as they are consumed in operations or expire with
the passage of time.

Prepayments are classified in the statement of financial position as current assets when the cost of
goods or services related to the prepayment are expected to be incurred within one year or the
Association's normal operating cycle, whichever is longer, Otherwise, prepayments are classified as
noncurrent assets.

Other current assets are recognized when the Association expects to receive future economic
benefit from them and the amount can be measured reliably. Other assets are classified in the
statement of financial position as current assets when the cost of goods or services related to the
assets are expected 1o be incurred within one year or the Association's normal operating cycle,
whichever is longer. Otherwise, other assets are classified as noncurrent assets.

2.9 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are initially measured at cost. At the end of each reporting peried, items
of property and equipment are measured at cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses, Cost Includes expenditure that fs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset and the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of
dismantling and remaving items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions.

Subsequent expenditures relating to an Item of property and equipment that have already been
recognized are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic
benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will
flow to the Association, All other subsequent expenditures are recognized as expense in the period
in which those are incurred,

Depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of other assets less thelr residual values over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Below is the estimated useful lives used
for the depreciation of property and equipment:

Property classification Estimated useful life
urniture and fixtures 5 years

Office equipment 3 years

Computer equipment 3 years

Office improvement 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful life of the office improvements,

Depreciation of these assets, on the same basls as other property assets, commences at the time
the assets are ready for their intended use.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer In use and no further
depreciation is charged to the statement of comprehensive income.

The estimated usefid lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to
ensure that the perfods and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the
expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment.
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When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated

and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset, determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, Is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income.

2.10 Intangible Asset

Computer software is stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses.

2.11 impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Assocfation’s non-financial assets such as property and equipment are
reviewed at each financial reporting date to determine whether there Is any indication of
impairment or an fmpairment loss previously recognized no longer exists or may have decreased. |f
any such Indication exists, the Association makes a formal estimate of the asset's recoverable
amount,

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset or its cash generating unit's {CGU) fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to sell Is the amount obtainable from the
sale of the asset fn an arm's length transaction. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, For an asset
that does not generate cash flows independent of those from other assets, the recaverable amount
is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs,

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered Impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and an
impairment toss is recognized In the statement of comprehensive income.

An impatrment lass is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss {s reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, 1f no impatrment loss had been recognized. Reversals of impairment are recognized
in the statement of comprehensive Income,

2.12 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are recognized in the period in which the money or services are received or when a
legally enforceable claim against the Company fs established or when the corresponding assets and
expenses are recognized/ incurrad,

Accrued expenses and ather payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accrued expenses and other payables
are classified as current labilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer); otherwise, they are presented as noncurrent liabilities.
Mﬂ&mhﬂﬁaﬂyatmrvahaemdmmnwmdnmrﬁadmwhgm
EIR

Accrued expenses are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied
but have not been paid, invoiced or formally agreed with supplier. It Is necessary to estimate the
amount of accrued expenses, however, the uncertainty is generally much less than for provision,

Other payables pertain to government dues and remittances.
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Government dues and remittances include withholding income taxes which represent taxes
retained by the Association for an item of income required to be remitted to the BIR within one (1)
month, The obligation of the Association to deduct and withhold the taxes arises at the time the
ineomepaymnuspaidorpayable.orunlncomtplymtumndormordedummor
asset, whichever comes first, The term "payable” refers to the date the obligation becomes due,
demandable, or legally enforceable.

Trade and other payables are recognized fnitially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. {

2,13 Liability for incurred policy benefit

A liability for incurred policy benefits relating to life Insurance contracts in force ks accrued when
premium revenue Is recognized.

The Association's aggregate reserve for life policies, policy and contract claims payable,
applicant’s deposit and other funds and premium deposit fund are computed annually based on the
approved valuation method by the Insurance Commission (IC) and certified to by an independent
actuary.

Liablility adeguacy test

The Assoclation assesses at each reporting date whether its recognized Insurance Uabilities are
adequate, using the current estimates of future cash flows under jts insurance contracts. If that
assessment shows that the carrying amount of its insurance Uabilities is inadequate in the light of
the estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency shall be recognized in profit or loss.

The liability is derecognized when the contract expires, Is discharged or Is cancelled.
2.14 Basic contingent benefit reserves

Basic contingent benefit reserves represent the total actuarial reserve set-up by the Association
pertaining to the basic life benefit that is in force as at the end of the accounting period. It refers
to the amount of lability which the Association establishes for a certificate to meet the
contractual obligation as it falls due.

2.15 Liability on individual fund value

Upon termination of membership, a member who has been with the Association at least three (3)
full years shall be entitled to an equity value equivalent to at least fifty percent (50%) of the total
weekly contributions collected from him,

The Association’s Board of Trustees shall set up each year sufficient reserves for the payment of
claims and other obligations tn accordance with actuarial procedures approved by the Insurance
Commission. If the reserves become impaired, the Board of Trustees shall require all members”
equitable proportion of such indebtedness agalnst the members and draw interest not exceading
five percent (5%) per annum compounded annually.

withdrawal from the funds of the Association, whether by check or any other instruments, |5 signed
by at least two (2} persons designated by the unanimous vote of the Association's Board of
Trustees,
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2.16 Optional benefit reserve

Optional benefit reserve represents the total actuarial reserve set up by the Association pertaining
to the policies under optional benefit that s in force as at the end of the accounting period. It
refers to the amount of Uability which the Association establishes for an optional policy to meet
the contractual obligation as it falls due.

2.17 Claims payable on basic contingent fund

CthyablembadccmumthWulhemdﬂmemld&mmmnhlp
certificates that are due and have already been approved for payment but, for one reason or
another, have not actually been paid. This Includes check already issued to beneficiaries but not
yet released as of the end of the financial reporting period,

2.18 Retirement obligation

Pursuant to the provision of the Republic Act 7641, all companies are required to provide
retirement benefits to all their employees, except when the Association has less than 10
employees, This employment benefit plan is a defined benefit plan because the entity's obligation
is to provide specific level of benefit for every year of services.

(a} Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan s a pension plan under which the Association pays fixed
contributions into a separata entity, The Assoclation has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit plan
is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan,

Defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will recelve on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability or asset recognized in the statement of financial position In respect of defined
benefit pension plans Is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation s calculated
annually using projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation Is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of government bonds that are denominated In the currency In which the benefits will be paid,
and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of all related pension obligations.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

* Service cost

* Netinterest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
*  Remeasurements of net defined benefit lability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as expense in the statement of income. Past service costs
are recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated

periodicaily by independent qualified actuaries.
Net interest on the net defined benefit Uability or asset Is the change during the period in the

net defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined
by applying the discount rate based on government bands to the net defined benefit llability or
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asset, Net interest on the net defined benefit Hability or asset is recognized as expense or
income in the statement of income.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains or losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes In actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

The cumulative gains or losses arising from the remeasurements are shown as a separate line
ftem in the statement of financial position as "remeasurement of retirement benefits
obligation®.

(b) Profit-sharing and bonuses

The Association recognizes a liability and expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a
formula that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the Assoclation’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Association recognizes a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a practice that has created & constructive obligation,

2.19 Fund balance

Fund balance refers to the residual interest in the assets of the Association after deducting all its
\iabitities. This represents the accumulated eamings of the Association reduced by whatever losses
the Association may incur during a certain accounting period.

2.20 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Assoclation has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event; (b) it s probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (c) a reliable estimate can be made of the
smount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money Is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability, Where discounting 1s used, the Increase In the provision due to the passage of time s
recognized as finance cost. When the Association expects a provision or loss to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement fs virtually certain
and its amount is estimable. The expense refating to any provision s presented in the statement of
comprehensive income, net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized In the Association’s financial statements. They are
disclosed unless the possibility of an sutflow of resources embadying economic benefits is remote,

Contingent assets are not recognized in the Association’s financial statements but disciosed In the
notes to Association's financial statements when an Inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2,21 Revenue recognition

Revenue s recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Assoclation and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria
must also be met before revenue is recognized:

The funds of the Association are derived from membership fees, periodic dues, weekly
contributions collected from members and Income from interest on savings and Investments,
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title policy.

Contribution ond fees

Members are charged a one-time thirty pesos (P30.00) application fee for KDCI members and one
hundred pesos (P100) for associate members in order to cover the expenses incurred in processing
thetr application, This fee Is neither refundable nor included In determining the member's
accumulated and refundable contributions. Membership fees are recognized upon the admission of
a quatified member to the Association.

Members are charged twenty pesos (P20.00) contribution per week for the payment of death and
total disability of a member, and death of any member’s legal spouse, of any of the members'
legitimate and/or legally adopted children in accordance with the Association’s table of Ufe
Insurance Benefits. Twenty percent (20%) of the weekly contribution from its members is deducted
as General Administrative Funds and any balance is used for payment of mutual benefits.

The contribution may be adjusted by the Board of Trustees as may be necessary to maintain the
funds of the Association at a level adeguate to meets its benefit obligations or commitments under
the pain,

Finance income

For all financial Instruments measured at amortized cost, Interest income is recorded using the EIR
which is the rate that exactly discounted the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial Instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or Hability, Interest income i3 included in “Finance income”
in the statement comprehensive of Income,

Other income ‘
Income from other sources is recognized when eamed.
2.22 Benefit and other expense recognition

Benefit and other expenses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when
decrease in future economic benefit related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability
has arisen that can be measured reliably. Expenses are recognized: on the basis of a direct
association between the costs incurred and the earning of specific items of Income; on the basis of
systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over
several accounting periods and the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly
determined; or immediately when an expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when,
and to the extent that, future economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition
in the statement of financlal position as an asset,

2.23 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially ail the

risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, All other leases are classified as operating leases. The
Company does not have any leases under finance lease,
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Company a4 lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Company at their fair value or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of
the lease. The corresponding llability to the lessor 1§ included In the company's statement of
financial pesition as a finance lease obligation,

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining batance of the liability, Finance charges
lmdun:ddmcﬂymimtlmm.mlasﬂwymdimﬁyatﬁbmﬂetoqudmm in
which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company's general policy on borrowing
costs, Contingent rentals are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except when another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattemn in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognized expenses in the penod in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease Incentives are recelved 1o enter Into operating leases, such incentives are
recognized as a lability, The aggregate benefit of incentives s recognized as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except when another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattem in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed,

2.24 Related parties

Parties are considered related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Individuals,
associates or companies that directly or indirectly control or are controlled by or under common
control with the Association are considered related parties. The key management personnel of the
Association are also considered to be related parties.

2.25 Income taxes

The Assoclation is exempted from income tax under Section 30 (¢) of the National Internal Revenue
Code as a non-stock assoclation organized and operated exclusively for charitable and cuttural
purposes no part of its net income or asset shall belong to or inure to the benefit of any member,
organizer, officer or any specific person. Interest eamed from the placement of Association funds
are, however, subject to final tax, The Interest Income shown in the financlal statement {s net of
final tax,

2.26 Events after the financial reporting date

Post year-end events up to the date the financial statements were authorized for issuance that
provide additional information about the Association's position at financial reporting date
(adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, when material,

NOTE 3 - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements In conformity with PFRS requires the Association’s

management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements.
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The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences and other various
factors that are belleved to be reasonable under the circumstances including expectations of
related future events, the results of which farm the basis of making the judgments about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates, assumptions and judgments are reviewed and evaluated on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period In which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or In the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods,

3,1 Judgments

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgments,
apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements.,

Determination of functional currency

The Association has determined that its functionat currency is Philippine Peso. The determination
of functional currency was based on the primary economic enviroament In which the Assoclation
generates and expends cash,

Classification of financial instruments

The Assoctation classifies a financial instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition as a
financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the
contractual agreement and the guidelines set by PAS 39 on the definitions of a financial asset, a
financial liabitity or equity. In addition, the Association also determines and evaluates its intention
and ability to keep the investments until its maturity date.

The substance of a financlal Instrument, rather than its legal form, and the management’s
intention and ability to hotd the financial instrument to maturity generally governs its classification
in the statement of financial position,

The classification of financial assets and llabilities is presented in Note 4.
Determination of fair value of financial instruments

The Association determines significant components of fair value measurement using verifiable
objective evidence (l.e., foreign exchange rates, interest rates, and volatility rates), timing and
the amount of changes In fair value would differ if the Association utilized a different valuation
methodology. Any changes in fair value of these financial assets and financial liabilities would
affect profit and loss and equity.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 amounted to

P163,107,539 and P138,002,172 and P105,811,687 and P95,508,111 respectively, as disclosed in
Note 4,

Estimates and assumptions
Estimation of useful lives of property and equipment
The Association reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property and equipment

the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. It is possible that
results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these sstimates. A reduction in

2
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estimated useful lives of property and equipment would increase recorded depreciation expense
and decrease the related asset accounts, The estimated useful lives of property and equipment are
discussad in Note 2.9 to the financial statements, which shawed no changes In 2016 and 2015.

The Association has entered into leases with varfous lessors. Based on the evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangemenits, all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of the
properties remain with the lessor. Accordingly, the Association accounted for the leases as
operating leases.

Impairment of financlal ossets

The Association assesses impairment on financial assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of financial asset may not be recoverable, The
determination of impairment losses for financial assets requires material estimates, including the
amount and timing of expected recoverable future cash flows. These estimates may change
significantly from time to time, depending on available information,

mmmbd!mhtﬂwanﬁngammdmmmwmmwmm
amounts.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Assoclation assesses at the end of each reporting date whether there is an indication that the
mmmddlnwﬂwllmmybelnwnd.nmymchtndtaumadm,orwhm
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Assoclation makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount. At the end of each reporting date, the Association assesses whether
there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount fs estimated.

Management has reviewed the carrying values of the Association’s non-financial assets as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015 for impairment. Based on the management's assessment, there were
no indications that the non-financial assets were fmpaired, thus no impairment loss was recognized
for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Estimation of liability for retirement benefits

The determination of the Association’s obligation and cost of pension and other pension benefits is
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amounts
Those assumptions are described in Note 2 and include, among others, discount rate and salary
increase rate.

In accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ from the assumptions used are accumulated and
amortized over future period and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded
obligation in such future periods.

Based on the actuarial valuation, the pension liability amounted to PSEB,531 and P626,239 as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively (Note 19),
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NOTE 4 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table sets forth the carrying value of financial instruments held by category:

2016 2015
Carrying
Values Falr Values Values Fair Values
Financial assets
Loans and recefvobles
Cash and cash equivalents (Note &) P56,953,300 P56,953,300 P43,960,52 P43,960,526
Receivables (Note 7) 3,828,671 3,828,671 2,747,379 2,747.37%
Rental deposit (Note 13) 90,945 90,945 . .
Other funds and deposit (Note 13) 162,461 162,461 -
Availoble-for-sale financial
assets (Note 9) 15,393,796 15,393,796 15,615,501 15,615,901
Held-to-maturity investments
(Note 10) 86,678,366 86,678,366 75,678,366 75,678 366
P163,107,539  P163,107,539 P138,002,172 7138, 172
Financial labilities
QOther financiel tiabilities:
Trade and other payables*
(Note 14) P941,909 P941,909 P27, 9 P27,
Liabdlity on individual equity
value (Note 15) 67,304,401 67,304,401 63,917,609 63,917,609
Aggregate reserve for trust
Liability - RF (Note 15) 36,130,189 36,130,189 30,066,165 30,066,165
Basic contingent benefit
reserve (Note 15) 200,509 200,509 164,503 164,503
Optional benefit reserve (Note 15) 748,406 748,406 763,668 763,668
Claims payable on basic contingent
benefit (Note 16) 486,273 486,273 268,175 268,175
P105,811,687  P105.811,687  _ P95,508,111 P95,510,152
*except government liabilities

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, recetvables, trade and other payables, liability
on individual equity value, aggregate reserve for trust liability, basic contingent benefit reserve
and claims payable on basic contingent benefit approximate its fair values due to the relatively

short-term maturities of the financial instruments,

Items of INCome, expense, gains or lusses recegnized from financial fnstruments are a3 follows:

Finance income (Notes 6 and 10)
Unrealized gain (loss) on change in fair value of
Available-for-sale

2016 2015
P4,420,930 P4,102,617
(222,105) 436,759
P4,198,825 P4,519,376
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NOTE 5 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIE2S
General objectives, policies and processes

The BOT has overall responsibility for the determination of the Association’s risk management
objectives and policies and, while retaining ultimate responsibility for them, it has delegated the
authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective implementation of the
objectives and policies to the Association's finance function, The BOT receives monthly reports
from the Association’s Finance Officer through which it reviews the effectiveness of the processes
put in place and the appropriateness of the objectives and policies it sets,

The overall objective of the BOT s to set paolices that seek to reduce risk as far as possible without
unduly affecting the Association's competitiveness and flexibility,

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Association is exposed to a variety of financial risks, which result from its operating, Investing
and financing activities, The Association’s principal financtal Instruments comprise of Cash and cash
equivalents, receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, held-to-maturity fnvestments, (fabitity
on individual equity value, aggregate reserve for trust Hability, basic contingent benefit reserve,
optional benefit reserve, claims payable on basic contingent benefit and accrued and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Association's
operations. The Association has varfous other financial assets and labllitles which arise directly
from operations,

Assoclation policies and guidelines cover credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The objective of
financial risk management is to contain, where appropriate, exposures in these financial risks to
limit any negative impact on the Association's results and financial position. The Association
actively measures, monitors and manages its financial risk exposures by various functions pursuant
to the segregation of duties principles.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fall to discharge an obligation
and cause the other party to incur a finandial loss. The receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basts with the result that the Association's exposure to impairment is not significant.

NMember credit risk is managed by managing and analyzing the credit risk for sach new member
before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Outstanding receivables
are regularly monitored. The credit quality of the Association's financial assets that are neither
past due nor impaired Is considersd to be good quality and expected to be collectible without
incurring any credit losses.

MMM&WWMBmMWMN&WMm’M
arrangements are with reputable and financially sound counterparties.
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The Association's exposure to credit risk arises from default of other counterparties, with a

maximum exposure equal 1o the carrying amounts as

Cash and cash equivalents” (Note 6)
Receivables (Note 7)

Other funds and deposit (Note 13)

Rental deposit (Note 13)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 9)
Held-to-maturity investments (Note 10)

*excluding cash on hand

follows:

2016 2015
P56,946,300 P43,953,526
3,828,671 2,747,379
162,461 £
90,945 -
15,393,796 15,615,901
86,678,366 75,678,366
P163,100,539 $137,995,172

The following table provides an analysis of the age of the financial assets that are past due but not
and those financial assets that are individually determined to be impaired as at the end of

the reporting period:
Ducember 31, 2016
Neither
Impaired noe
past due Past due but not yet impaired
é1te Nore
1t 60 90 9110 than 120
Total Current days deys 120
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash
oquivalents (Note 6)  P56,946,300 56,946,300 P P L L L3
Recetvables (Mote 7) 3,828,671 P2,343,667 1,146,091 52,364 206,629 - -
Rental deposit
(Note 13) 90,945 90,945 B . . - .
Other funds and
deposit (Note 13) 162,461 162,461 . . . - .
Avallable-for-sale
financial assets
(Nate 9) 15,393,796 15,393,7%¢ . - . - -
investments (Note 10) 86,678,366 86,678,366 - - - -
P163,100,53%  P161,615,535  P1,146,011 P52, 364 7286629 P P
Oecamver 31, 2015
Reither
Impaired nor
past due Past due but not yet tmpaired
910
1todd 61t 50 170 More than
Total Current 120 ired
Loars and recelvables
Cash and cash aquivalents
(Mote &) 143,953,526 P43,551,526 » L LS 2 "
Recetvables (Note 7) 2,747,379 2,747,079 . - + - -
Availabie-for-sale financlal
assets (Note 9) 15,015,901 15,615,901 - .
Held-to-maturtty
Tnvestments (Rate 10) 75,678,366 75,678,368 - - - .
P4, 041,046 P94,041, 646 P - P P P-

k]
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The credit quality of the Association’s financlal assets Is evaluated using intemnal credit rating,
Financial assets are considered as high grade if the counter parties are not expected to default in
settling their obligations, thus, credit risk exposure is minimal. These counter parties include
banks, related parties and members who pay on or before due date.

Credit quality per class of financial assets

The Association’s bases in grading its financial assets are as follows:

High grade - These are receivables which have a high probability of collection (the counterparty
has the apparent ability to satisfy its obligation and the security on the recelvables are readily
enforceable).

Standard - These are receivables where collections are probable due to the reputation and the
financial ability of the counterparty to pay but have been outstanding for a certain period of time.

Substandard - These are receivables that can be collected provided the Association makes
persistent effort to collect them,

The table below shows the credit quality by class of financlal assets (gross of allowance for credit
losses) of the Association based on their historical experience with the corresponding third parties
as of December 31, 2014 and 2015:

20186
Past Due nor red
Past Due but
Grace Grode Grade  Unrated Not Total
Loans and recelvables
Cash and cash
equivalents (Nate 6) P56,948, 300 L5 P P P P- 756,946,300
Recelvables (Note 7) 2,343,667 . - P 1,485,004 P P3, 820,671
Rental depesit (Note 13) 90,945 . - - » . 70,945
Oeher funds and deposit v
(Note 13) 162,461 . . - - . 162,461
Available-for-sale financial
asvets (Note 9) 15,393,796 - - - - - 15,393,79%
Held-to-maturity
investments (Note 10) 86,678,366 - . . - - 06,670,366
P161,615,535 P P - P1,485.004 P M
05
Nelthes Past Dus noe red Past Due
bt Not
High Crade  Grade Grade Unested impaired  dmpaired Total
Loans and racetvabies
Cazh and cash equivalents
(Noto &) 43,953,526 - P [ L3 P P4Q,953,520
Receivables (Note 7) 1,747,319 - . . . - L7473
Available-forsale fmancial
wvets (Note 9) 15,615,500 - - . . - 15,615,901
Held-to-maturity
svestmants (Note 10) 75,678,364 > . . a 2 75,678,366

P94,041,046 P P L3 P P w
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Impalrment assessment

Impairment losses are recognized based on the results of specific (Individual) and collective
assessment of credit exposures, Impairment has taken place when there is a presence of known
difficulties in the payments of obiigation by counterparties. This and other factors, either singly or
in tandem with other factors, constitute observable events or data that meet the definition of
objective evidence of impairment.

The Association applied specific (individual) assessment methodology in assessing and measuring
impairment.

Specific (Individual) assessment

The Association determines the allowances appropriate for each individually significant loan on an
individual basis. Items considerad when determining amounts of allowances include payment and
collection history, timing of expected cash flows and realizable value of collateral, if any.

The Association sets criteria for specific loan impairment testing and uses the discounted cash flow
method to compute for impairment loss, Accounts subjected to specific impairment and are found
to be impaired shall be excluded from the collective impairment computation.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Association will not be able to meet {ts financial obligations
as these fall due and lack of funding to finance its growth and capital expenditures and working
capital requirements.

The Association’s approach to manage its liquidity profile are to ensure that adequate funding is
available at all times; to meet commitments as these arise without incurring unnecessary costs;
and to be able to access funding when needed.

The following summarizes the maturity profile of the Association's non-derivative financial
llabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

December 31, 2016
Lessthan 3t012 1to 5
Ondemand  3Imonths months  years Total

Trade and other payables (Note 14) P941,909 P P P- P941,909
Liabllity on individual equity

value (Note 15) 3,922,456 - - - 3,922,456
Aggregate reserve for trust

Hability (Note 15) 5,854,684 . - . 6,854,684
Basic contingent benefit

reserve (Note 15) 200,509 - - - 200,509
Optional benefit reserve (Note 15) 748,406 . - - 748 406
Claims payable on basic

contingent benefit (Note 18) 486,273 - - - 486,273

P10,154,237 P- P- P-  P10,154,237

n
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December 31, 2015

Cessthan Jto 12
Ondemand I months  mooths  1to S years Total
Trade and other payables (Note 14) P327,591 P P P- P327,9%1
Liab#lity on ndividual equity
vaiue (Note 15) 4,154,14) - - - 415414
Aggregate reserve for trust
fiability (Nate 15) 6,285,854 . - . 6,285,854
Basic contingent benefit
reserve (Note 15) 164,503 . . . 164,503
Optional benefit reserve (Note 15) 763,668 - - . 763,658
Claims payable on basic
contingent benefit (Note 16) 268,175 - . . 268,175
11,964,134 P- P P- P11,964,334
Market risks

Market risk refers to the risk that changes In market prices, such as foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and other market prices will affect the Association’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial statements, The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

The Association (s subject to various market risks, Including risks from changes In interest. There
has been no change to the Association's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk,

Interest rate risks

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financlal instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market Interest rates. Fair value Interest rate risk i3 the risk that
the fair value of a financial Instrument will fluctuate due to changes In market Interest rates.

Copltol risk manogement

The primary abjective of the Association's capital management Is to ensure Its ability to continue
as a going concern and that ft maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to
suppart its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Association's BOT has the overall responsibility for monitoring of capital in proportion to risk,
Profiles for capital ratfos are set in the light of changes in the Association's external environment
and the risks underlying the Association's business operations and industry,

The Association monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio, which Is calculated as
total debt divided by total equity, Total debt is equivalent to total labilities shown in the
statement of financial position. Total equity comprises all components of equity including share
capital and related eamings (deficit),
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2016 2015

Debt P106,406,130 P96,136,391
Cash and cash equivaients (Note 6) (56,953,300) (43,960,526)
Net Debt 49,452,830 52,175,865
Equity 58,683,616 42,529,598
Not debt to equity ratio 1:0.84 1:1.23

There were no changes in the Assoclation’s approach to capital management during the year,
Margin of Solvency (MOS)

The Association is required to maintain at all times an MOS for life Insurance business of P500,000
or P2,00 per thousand of the total amount of its insurance in force as of the preceding calendar
year on all policies, except term Insurance, whichever is higher.

The MOS shall be the excess of the value of its admitted assets (as defined under the IC Code),
exclusive of its paid-up capital, over the amount of its labilities, unearned premiums and
reinsurance reserves, As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Association’s MOS based on its
calculations amounted to P147,704,483 and P125,165,141, respectively. The final amount of the
MOS can be determined only after the accounts of the Association have been examined by the IC
specifically as to admitted and non-admitted assets as defined under the same Code.,

The surplus available for MOS for the Association follows;

2016 2015

et g I ]
Admitted Liabilities 106,406, 1 96,136,391
Net worth P56,082,675 Pa1. 350,504

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the estimated non-admitted assets of the Association's life
operations, as defined under the Code, which are included In the accompanying statements of
financial position follows: i

2016 2015
Software and system development P1,219,366 P-
Recelvables 559,976 588,893
Other current assets 340,429 173,275
Other noncurrent assets 253,406 -
Transportation equipment 134,899 283,2%
Office furniture and fixture ‘92,865 130,484
Office improvement - 3,152
Total non-admitted assets P2,600,941 P1,179,004

If an ‘nsurance Association failed to meet the minimum required MOS, the IC is authorized to
suspend or revoke all certificates of authority granted to such companies, its officers and agents,
and no new business shall be done by and for such Association until its authority is restored by the
IC.
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Price risk

The Association's price risk exposure at year-end relates to financial assets and liabilities whose
values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, principally, AFS financial assets. Such
investment securities are subject to the price risk due to changes in market values of instruments
uis!ngdmafmfmnmﬂtmimdud!mnmnnmthdrhmwfxmmmm
instruments traded in the market.

The Association's investments are regulated under the pertinent provisions of Presidential Decree
No. 612, otherwise known as The Insurance Code of the Philippines. The Insurance Code generally
requimallmmecmmmtoobwﬂmwmlofﬂwlc for any and all of their
Invcmnems.ltWWmmwthmiCaMlymmmmlm
mdedmnnheprwiommonm.mImemtheinvmuwmywumdnme
immediate sale or disposal of investments deemed too risky.

For equity Investments, Section 200 of the Insurance Code further provides, among other things
that insurance companies may only fnvest in shares of Philippine corporations which have prior
three-year dividend payment record. Moreover, the same section limits exposure to any one
institution equal to 10% of an Insurer’s total admitted assets.

The following table shows the equity impact of reasonable possible change in the fair values of the
Assodaﬁ:t\;s investments as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 (all other variables held constant),

2016 2015
Effect of Total Effact of Total
Comprehensive Comprehensive
Volatility Income Volatility Income
AFS financial assets 1% 11,314 1% 11,478

-1% (11,314) -1% (11,478)

Guaranty fund

As a mutual benefit association, the IC also requires the Association to possess a guaranty fund of
P5.00 miltion. This minimum amount shall be maintained at all times and it must be Increased by
an amount equivalent to 5% of the Association's gross premium collections until the guaranty fund
reaches 12.5% of the minimum paid up capital for domestic life Insurance companies or P125.00
million. As at December 31, 2016 and 2015 the Association has a total of P19,975,538 and
P18,060,420 representing guaranty fund which is deposited with the IC.
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NOTE 6 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The account consists of:
2016 2015
Cash on hand P7.,000 P7,000
Cash in banks 20,707,715 28,768,430
Cash equivalents 36,238,585 15,185,096
P56,953,300 P43,960,526

Cash and cash equivalents eam interest at the prevalling bank deposit rates. Interest eamed in
2016 and 2015 amounted to P130,606 and P97 787, respectively.

NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES

The account consists of:
2016 2015

Unremitted member's contribution dues and fees (Note 18) P2,835,175 P1,757,953
Unremitted premiums (Note 18) 433,520 400,533
Due from officers and employees 44,452 50,075
Advances to employees 10,000 20,469
Receivable KDCI Inc. 2,681 29,287
Other receivables 502,843 489,062

P3,828,671 P2,747,379

Unremitted members' contributions, dues and fees represents amount collected by partner
individual/ institutions on membership certificates but not yet remitted as at the end of the
financial reporting period.

Unremitted premium represents gross premiums collected by partner Individuals/institutions on all
opﬁmlpdidesbutnotmmnﬂmdasnthemdo(ﬁnmmﬂwmm

Other receivables represent accrued interest income on BLIP and CLIP,

Based on management’s evaluation, the Association's receivables are fully collectible, thus, no
allowance for impairment is necessary as at December 31, 2016 and 2015,

Management believes that the carrying amounts of receivables approximate its fair values.
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NOTE 8 -OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

The account consists of:
2016 2015
Unused supplies P238,082 93,094
Prepaid expenses 102,347 80,180
P340,429 P173,274
NOTE 9 -AYAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
The account consists of:
No. of Acquisition Fair Value
Shares Cast 16
Petron preferred shares series 2A 8,000 P8,000,000 P8,360,000
Save and learned fixed income fund 2,348,914 5,000,000 5,180,765
Sun life prosperity GS fund 1,229,861 2,000,000 1,853,031

P15,000,000 P15,393,796

No. of Acquisition Fair Value
Shares Cost 2015
Petron preferred shares serfes 2A 8,000 P8,000,000 PB,560,000
Save and learned fixed income fund 2,348,914 5,000,000 5,181,470
Sun life prosperity GS fund 1,229,851 2,000,000 1,874,431
15,000,000 P15,615,901

Unrealized gain (loss) recognized In the statament of comprehensive income in 2016 and 2015
amounted to (P222,105) and P436,759, respectively.

NOTE 10 -HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

The Account consists of:
2016 2015
Government security P66,178,366 P§1,178,366
Corporate bond 20,500,000 14,500,000
P86,678,366 P75,678.366

During the year, the Association acquired additional investments amounting to P11,000,000,
Interest earned in 2016 and 2015 amounted to P3,563,523 and P4,004,830, respectively.
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NOTE 11 - ADVANCES TO CONTRACTOR

The amount of advances to contractor recognized amounted to P1,219,366 as at
December 31, 2016. This pertains o the Association's payment to its contractor for their services
to work on an fnformation system for insurance management, The system will be delivered and will
be fully operational in 2017.

NOTE 12 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

The account consists of:
Office
furniture
Transportation Office Computer and
equipment  improvements equipment  fixture Total

Cost
At January 1, 2015 PB49,872 P37,829 P415,023 P299,816 P1,602,540
Additions during the year - . 48,720 123,479 172,199
At December 31, 2015 849,672 37,829 463,743 423,295 1,774,739
Additions during the year 27,750 - 197,095 37,063 261,908
Disposals during the year - - (30,265) . (30,265)
At December 31, 2016 877,622 37,829 630,573 460,358 2,006,382
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2015 396,606 . 310,673 234,178 941,457
Depreciation during

the year (Note 21) 169,974 34,677 79,454 58,634 342,73%
At December 31, 2015 566,580 34,677 390,127 292,812 1,284,196
Depreciation during

the year (Note 21) 176,141 3152 73,620 74,682 327,595
Disposals during the year - - (27,821) - {27,821)
At December 31, 2016 742,721 37,829 435,926 367,494 1,583,970
Net book value
At December 31, 2016 P134,901 P-  P194,647 P92,864 P422,412
At December 31, 2015 P283,292 £3,152 P73,616 P130,483  P490,543

In 2016, the Association sold two of its computer equipments. Gain on sale recognized in the
statements of comprehensive income amounted to P3,609.

There are neither restrictions on the title an the Association’s property and equipment nor any of
them are pledged as security for any of its liabilities,

The cost of fully depreciated assets still being used in the operation of the Association amounted to
P37,829 and nil as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Based on management's assessment, there is no indication of impairment and the carrying amount
of property and equipment can be recovered through continuous use In operatians,
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NOTE 13 - OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

The account consists of:
2016 2015
Other funds and deposits P162,461 p-
Rental deposit (Note 22) 90,945 .
P253,406 P-

Other funds and deposits pertains to the Assoclation’s contribution under Microinsurance MBA
Association of the Philippines.

NOTE 14 - TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The account consists of:
2016 2015
Accounts payable P697,328 P233,116
Accrued expenses 244,581 94,875
Government dues 5912 2,041
P947,821 P330,032

Accounts payable pertains to collection fees.

Accrued expenses pertain to expenses incurred but not yet paid such as legal and professional fees,
and operating cost incurred by the Association.

Other payables pertain to government dues and remittances. Govermnment dues and remittances
represent contributions of employees that will be remitted to various government agencies such as
S85, Philhealth and Pag-ibig. It also includes taxes withheld from salaries of employees and Income
payment to suppliers, which will be remitted in the subsequent month.

NOTE 15 - AGGREGATE RESERVES

The account consists of:
2016 2015
Liability on individual equity value P67,304,401 P63,917,609
Aggregate reserve for trust lability - Reserved Funds (RF) 36,130,189 30,066,165
Basic contingent benefit reserve 200,509 164,503
Optional benefit reserve 748,406 763,668
P104,383,505 P94,911,945
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2016 2015

Brekdown:
Current portion
Liability on individual equity value 3,922,456 4,154,143
Aggregate reserve for trust Hability - RF 6,854,684 6,285,854
Noncurrent portion
Liability on individual equity value 63,381,945 59,763,466
Aggregate reserve for trust liability - RF 29,275,505 23,780,311

Liability on Individual equity value represents the total amount of obligations set up by the
Association on membership certificates pertaining to 50% equity value, as required under the
Insurance Code, and any incremental amount declared by the Assaciation,

Aguregate reserve for trust liability is weekly contribution of five pesos, which shall be credited to
the fund for the account of the member. The calculations of the aggregate reserves are based on
reasonable actuarial assumptions and are in accordance with generally accepted actuarial
principles.

NOTE 16 - CLAIMS PAYABLE ON BASIC CONTINGENT BENEFIT

The account consists of incurred but not reported claims amounting to P436,273 and P268,175 as at
Decemnber 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

NOTE 17 - FUND BALANCE

Fund balance refers to the residual interest in the assets of the Assoclation after deducting all its
liabilities, This represents the accumulated eamings of the MBA reduced by whatever losses the
Association may incur during a certain accounting period.

Restricted fund Unrestricted

balance fund balance Total
Balance at January 1, 2015 P18,001,974 P16,970,938 P34,972,912
Movement during the year 2,302,434 5,254,252 7,556,686
Balance at December 31, 2015 P20,304,408 P22,225,190 P42,529,598
Movement during the year 2,672,629 13,481,389 16,154,018
Balance at December 31, 2016 P22,977,037 P35,706,579 P58,683,616

Restricted fund composed of guaranty fund and education and training fund. Education and training
fund refers to the amount allocated by the Association for education and training of its members,
officers and staff, Education and training fund includes the amount of payment to Kasagana-ka
Development Center that represents collection fees.

A Mutual Benefit association shall only maintain free and unassigned surplus of not more than
twenty percent (20%) of its total liabilities as verified by the Commissioner. Any amount in excess
shall be returned to the members by way of dividends, enhancing the equity value or providing
benefits In kind and other relevant services. In addition, subject to the approval of the
Commissioner, a mutual benefit association may allocate a portion for capacity building and
research and development such as developing new products and services, upgrading and improving
operating system and equipment and continuing member education.
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As at and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the K-MBA's excess In Unrestricted
Fund Balance from twenty percent (20%) of Habilities are as follows:

Excess of Unrestricted Fund
Unrestricted Fund Balance Total llabilitles 20% of Liabilities Balance from 20% of
Llabilities
As at and for the year ended December 31, 2016
P35,483,562 P106,388,386 P21,277 677 P14,205,885
As at and for the year ended December 31, 2015
P21,858,528 P95,510,152 P19,102,030 P2,756,498

NOTE 18 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the normal course of its business, the Association transacts with its related parties. These
principally consist of collection of membership and premium contribution and non-interest bearing
advances for certain expenses. Other transactions are based on terms agreed to by the parties.

Nature of the related party
Name of related party Relationship by transaction
Microfinance Funds Assigned for Member's
Kasagana-ka Development Center (KDCH) partner Benefits (Fund Balance Account)

The following summarizes the Association's related party transactions:

Additions
Unremitted Contridbution Dues and Fees during the  Payment /
2015 year Collections 2016
Affillate
KDCI P1,757,953 P32,630,610 P31,553,388 P2,835,175
Additions
Unremitted Premiums during the  Payment /
2015 year Collections 2016
Affiliate
KDCI P400,533 P5.108,354 P5,075,367  P433,520

Details of the Association's related party transactions follow:

a, The Association will collect from KDCI members’ contributions on member certificates
that will be remitted at the end of the financial reporting period,

b. The Assoclation will collect from KDC| gross premiums on all optional policies that will
be remitted at the end of the financial reporting period.
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The outstanding balances with related parties as at December 31 are as {follows:

Nature of
consideration to Detadls of
Terms and be provided  guarantess glven impairment
conditions _ Security  upen settlement _ar received Loss
016 2015
Uaremitted
Contributson
Dues and Fees
(Note 7) P2,835.175 P1,757,955 Demandable Unsacured Casn None Neoe
Unremitted
Premives
(Note 7) 433,520 400,533 Oemandable Ursecured Cash None None

NOTE 19 - RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

The Assoclation has a noncontributory, defined benefit plan covering all its officers and regular
emplayees. Retirement benefits expense recognized in the statement of comprehensive Income 1s
computed based on provision of PAS 19 (Amended). The principal sctuarial assumptions used to
determine the funding of the trust fund Is accrued benefit actuarial cost method which take into
account the factors of investment, mortality, disability, and salary projection rates,

In 2016, the Association engaged Asian Actuaries, Inc. to prepare an actuarial valuation of the
Association’s retirement lability, The actuarial report fs dated March 21, 2017 covering valuation
dates perlod January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016. The effects of the valuation are shown below.

The amounts recognized in the statements of financial position are as follows:

2016 2015
Present value of the obligation P1,043,972 P919,927
Fair value of plan assets (455,441) {293,688)
Defined benefit obligation P588,531 P626,239

The retirement benefit cost recognized in the statements of comprebensive income as follows

(Note 21):
2016 2015
Current service cost P172,939% P107,502
Past service cost - 53,344
Interest cost 28,109 23,975
P201,048 P185,221
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a. Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation
The movement in the defined benefit obligation fs as follows:

2016 2015
Present vatue of the obligation at January 1 P919,927 P474,403
Current service cost 172,939 107,902
Past service cost - 53,344
Interest cost 47,310 23,975
Remeasurements in other comprebensive income
Loss (gain) In defined benefit cbiigation from
changes in financial assumptions (16,052) 260,303
Gain in defined benefit abligation due to
experience (80,152) -
124,045 445,524
Present value of the obligation at Dacember 31 P1,043,972 P919,927
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 P293,688 P-
Contributions paid 160,296 293,688
Expected retumn 19,201 .
Remeasurements in cther comprehensive income
Loss In defined benefit obligation due to
experience (17,744) -
161,753 293,638
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 P4SS, 441 P293,688
Present value of the obligation, net at
December 31 P588,531 P626,239

b. Remeasurements in other comprehensive Income

Remeasurements in other comprehensive income represent actuarial gains and losses which are

presented at net of refated deferred tax as shown below:
2016

Actuarial gain (loss) recognized, net P78,460

015

(P260,303)
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c. Actuarial assumptions

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

The principal assumptions used in determining pension liability of the Association are shown

below:

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increases

NOTE 20 - REVENUE

The account consists of:
Gross member's contribution
Gross premium

Membership fees
Miscellaneous income

2016 2015
5.24% 5, 14%
5% 5%

2016 2015
P32,004,443 P29,420,648
6,297,905 5,574,428
752,350 748,390
715,866 371,207
39,770,564 P36,114,673

Miscellaneous income is composed of other incomeo from K-Kalinga and income other than

contribution, premiums and membership fees.
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NOTE 21 - OPERATING EXPENSES

The account consists of:

2016 2015
Salaries, wages and benefits P3,157,936 P2,816,283
Representation and entertainment 664,280 594,797
Transportation and travel allowance 490,665 413,509
Meeting and conferences 471,949 199,547
Office supplies 369,353 365,453
Annual general assembly 329,233 -
Depreciation (Note 12) 327,595 342,739
Rental (Note 22) 325,799 .
Technical and professional fees 318,447 211,695
Professional end technical development 221,959 397,529
Retirement benefit cost (Note 19) 201,048 185,221
Marketing, advertising and promotions 199,598 79,445
Taxes, licenses and fees 162,976 207,658
Research and development 159,649 186,815
Monitoring 129,345 191,655
Social and community service 120,000 300,000
Repairs and maintenance 100,549 30,105
Utilities 98,441 74,557
Donations and contributions 34,000 4,000
Reinsurance premium 32,650 13,200
insurance 25,119 3,966
Medicine - 3,710
Bank and other charges 900 1,400
Miscellaneous 21,927 35,154

P7,963,418 P6,658,438

NOTE 22 - LEASE AGREEMENT

The Association entered into two operating lease agreements for the lease of Units 501 and 504 for
the period of two (2) years from February 1, 2016 to January 31, 2018 and from May 1, 2016 to
Apeil 30, 2018, respectivety. Total monthly rentals of P30,315 for both units shall be paid on the

first year of the lease agreement and shall increase ta P33,344 on the second year,

Relative to the lease agreements, the Association pald security deposit amounting to P90,945

(Note 13).
Rent expense recognized in 2016 amounted to P325,799 (Note 21),
The future lease payments under the operating lease will be as follows:

2016 2015
Not later than one year P381,969 15
Later than one year and not later than two years 89,523 >
P471,492 P-
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NOTE 23 - INCOME TAX EXEMPTION

The association is exempted from income tax under Section 30 (¢) of the Naticnal Internal Revenue
Code as a non-stock association organized and operated exciusively for chantable and cultural
purposes and no part of its net income or asset shall belong to or inure to the benefit of any
member, organizer, officer or any specific person, Interest earned from the placement of
Association funds are, however, subject to final tax. The interest income shown in the financial
statement 15 net of final tax.

NOTE 24 - SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE
(BIR)

A, REVENUE REGULATIONS (RR) NO, 15-2010

On November 25, 2010, the BIR issued RR No. 15-2010 which prescribes additional procedural
and/or documentary requirements in connection with the preparation and submission of
financial statements accompanying the tax returns. Under the said RR, companies are
required to disclose, In addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRS and such other
standards and/or conventions that may heretofore be adopted, in the Notes to the Financial
Statements, information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable
year. In compliance with the requirements set forth by RR 152010 hereunder are the
information on taxes, duties and ticense fees paid or accrued during the taxable year,

1. The amount of VAT output tax declared during the year and the account title and
amount/s upon which the same was based

The Association’s revenues were not subject to Value Added Tax for years ended
Decemnber 31, 2016 and 2015,

2. The amount of VAT Input taxes claimed

The Association's revenues were not subject to Value Added Tax for years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015.

3. The landed costs of imports and the amount of custom duties and tariff fees paid or
accrued thereon

The Assoclation did not have any importations in 2016 and 2015 that would require for the
payment of customs duties and tariff fees.

4. The amount of excise taxes classified per major product category

The Association did not have any transactions in 2016 and 2015 which are subject to excise
tax.

47

KMBA Annual Report 2016

87




5. Documentary stamp tax (DST)

The Association did not have any transactions in 2016 and 2015 which are subject to
documentary stamp tax.

6. Taxes and licenses

a, Local
Duties and taxes P122,480
Business Permit 11,282
Others 29,214

P162,976
7. Withholding taxes

The amount of withholding taxes pald/accrued for the year amounted to:

a. Withholding tax on salaries
P276,605

8. Perlods covered and amounts of deficlency tax assessments, whether protested or not

The Association has not yet recelved a final assessment notice from the Regional Office
covering the taxable year December 31, 2016 amounting to NIL, inclusive of penalties, for
deficiency income/VAT/Percentage/withholding tax, which has been protested/agreed upon,

Tax cases, and amounts Involved, under preliminary investigation, litigation and/or
prosecution in courts or bodies outside the BIR

The Assoclation has no RATE case under pretiminary investigation of the Dept. of Justice (DOJ)
invalving deficiency Income tax for taxable year 2016 amount to NIL.

B. REVENUE REGULATIONS NO. 19-2011

RR No. 19-2011 was issued on December 9, 2011 to prescribe the new BIR forms that will be
used for Income Tax filing covering and starting with Calendar Year 2011, and to modify
Revenve Memorandum Circular No. 57.2011. Pursuant to Section 244 in relation to Soctions
6(H), 51(A)(1), and 51{A)(2) of the National Internal Revenue Code of 1997 (Tax Code), as
amended, these Regulations prescribed to revise BIR Form Nos, 1700, 1701 and 1702 to refiect
the changes in Information requested from the sald BIR Forms and to enable the said forms to
be read by an Optical Character Reader. Under the Guidelines and Instructions of BIR Form No.
1702 - Page 4, the following schedules are prescribed under existing revenue issuances which
must form part of the Notes to the Audited Financial Statements:
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1. Revenue

Gross Member’s Contribution
Gross Premium

Membership Fees
Miscellaneous Income

2. Benefit expense

Benefit/clalms expenses - BLIP

Benefit/claims expenses - CLIP

Benefit/claims expenses - Equity value

Allecation for liability on individual equity

Increase/ (decrease) in reserve for basic contingent fund

Increase/ (decrease) in reserve for optional benefit

Increase/ (decrease) in Hability on Individual equity

Increase/ (decrease) in aggregate reserve for trust
liability

Other expenses for members

Collection fees

Total benefit expense

Exempt

Regular rate

P32,004,443
6,297,905
752,350
715,866

P39,770,564

Exempt

P6,951,019
1,390,000
3,648,112

12,394,537

253,545
(15,262)
(8,995,303)

657,867
866,724
1,109,150

P18,260,389

The Association does not have expenses arising from revenue subject to regular rate tax.

3. Non-Operating and Taxable Other Income

The Association did not have any other income in 2016 and 2015 which are subject to tax,

4. Taxes and licenses

a. Local
Duties and taxes
Business Pormit
Others

49

P162,576

P122,480
11,282
29,214
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5. Operating expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits
Representation and entertainment
Transportation and travel allowance
Meeting and conferences

Office supplies

Annual general assembly
Depreciation

Rental

Technical and professional fees
Professional and technical development
Retirement benefit cost

Marketing, advertising and promotions
Taxes, licenses and fees

Research and development
Monitoring

Social and community service
Repairs and maintenance

Utilities

Donations and contributions
Reinsurance premium

Insurance

Medicine

Bank and other charges
Miscellaneous

50

P3,157,936
664,280
490,665
471,949
369,353
329,233
327,595
325,7%9
318,447
221,959
201,048
199,598
162,976
159,649
129,345
120,000
100,549

98,441
34,000
32,650
5119

%00
21,927

P7,963,418
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KASAGANA-KA
Wutual Benefit Association. Inc,

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The management of Kasagana Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. is responsible for all information
and representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Retum for the year ended December 31,
2016. Management is likewise responsible for all information and representations contained in the
financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return covering the same reporting
period. Furthermore, the management is responsible for all information and representations
contained in all the other tax retums filed for the reporting period, including, but not limited, to the
Value-Added Tax and/or percentage tax retumns, withholding tax returns, documentary stamp tax
returns, and any and all other tax retumns,

In this regard, the management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2016 and the accompanying Annual income Tax Return are in accordance with
the books and records of the Association, complete and correct in all materfal respects. Management.
likewise affirms that:

{a) the Annual Income Tax Retum has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other
issuances of the Department of Finance and the Bureau of Intemal Revenue;

(b) any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financial
statements pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation of the fncome tax
return pursuant to tax accounting rules has been reported as reconciling items and
maintained in the Association's books and records in accordance with the requirements of
Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and other relevant issuances; and

{c) the Association has filed all applicable tax retumns, reports and statements required to be
filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all taxes and other impositions
shown thereon to be due and payable have been paid for the reporting period, except those
contested in good faith,

) o
ISABEL ILIW-ILIW ISABEL ILIW-ILIW
Chairman of the Board President

MARISSA LOYOLA
Treasurer

Signed this 10th day of Apnil, 2017

£5 Don Francbieo Street, Don Envque Heigitts, Brgy. Moty Spidt Corr alth Ave., G City
Telatax (63) 990-7915
Emall: kasagoncka mboSgmal.com
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